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PROCEEDI NGS

(On record)

THE REPORTER: On record.

MR. BLATCHFORD: We're on the record. This is
the public hearing portion of the community devel opnment of the
CDQ process quota. The comrunity devel opnment plan’s
application, Novenber -- so we have Norton Sound here. How
we'll do this is that G eg Cashen will noderate here but |et
me introduce the nenbers of the staff or, you know, Mark,
maybe you can just introduce yourself.

MR. DAVIS: Yeah, for the record, ny nane is
Mark Davis. |’mthe director of banking, securities and
cor porations.

MR. BLATCHFORD: And Lol a?

MS. LEAMER Lol a Leaner with the CDQ program
of fice.

MR KRYGER |'mEarl Krygier, Al aska
Department of Fish and Gane, extended jurisdiction.

MR, JONES: Larry Jones, CDQ specialist,
Departnent of Conmmerce.

MR. CASHEN. G eg Cashen, CDQ program nmanager,
Departnent of Conmmerce.

MR. BLATCHFORD: And |’ m Edgar Bl atchford, the
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Comm ssi oner of Al aska Departnent of Commerce, Community and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent. This is a very inportant process. You
are nunber five of six CDQ groups. The appearance of fairness
is absolutely inperative and we will proceed as we have with
all the other groups. W will go into this public hearing.
Then we’ || have an open public hearing and then we’ll go into
a private or an executive session later on. If you wish to
wi thhold information, you can do that later on. Mark?

MR. DAVIS: Yeah, that’s right, three processes
and we -- | need to informyou HET (ph) has sone public
coment that applies to all six groups. |t appeared at
API DCA' s portion, the witness was Labor Comm ssioner, Geg
O deary. He appeared on behalf of the Departnent and the
Governor’s office and he wanted to note that the state was
maki ng training available for maritinme application. The
Governor is announcing or has announced by now at sone of the
ot her (indiscernible) he had a jobs program which includes
work on vessels and that training noney will be avail able
whi ch should apply to all six CDQ groups and that’s the
essence of his testinony. W don’'t have a transcript yet.
W'll nmake it avail able to you.

MR. BLATCHFORD: M. Cashen?

MR. CASHEN: Thank you, Conm ssioner. Eugene,
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M. Nelson, Sinon, the public hearing will be set up with the
first hour for testinony fromNorton Sound. Then we'll open
the floor up for public comments and then the state will have
an hour to ask sone questions of Norton Sound and then we’ll
have an executive session. W'’Ill go into that, you know, when
that -- we’'ll explain the paraneters of executive session at
that time so if you d like to begin your presentation, you nay
pr oceed.

MR, ASICKSI K: Ckay. Good norning. Thank you,
Comm ssi oner, and nenbers of the CDQ team and thank you again
for this second opportunity to present our 2006, 2008 CDP. |
have a |large group with me today. 1’'d like to introduce ny
executive commttee. | have Chairman, Dan Harrel son with ne
fromWite Muuntain sitting next to nme. | also have None
representative, Don Stiles -- Donald and representative Dean
Pet erson; Wl es representative, Frank Oxerok; and Shaktoolik
representative Harvey Sooki ayak. W al so have board of
director, WIIliam Johnson out of Unal akl eet and | have Janis
| vanof f, community devel opnent specialist for NSEDC, Steve
Ri eger with Norton Sound | nvestnent Conpany; Don Mtchell,
attorney and we have Chris Cook from-- chief operating
of ficer, accounting departnent. | also have Norton Sou --

excuse me, Jon Zuck, our CDQ harvest manager. W al so have
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Norton Sound Seafood Products here, nmanager, Tom McQuire and

Rocky. We -- Marciano is his name, | guess. Let’'s see, did |
m ss anyone? OCh, Katie. This portion I’'Il turn over to our
chai rman and then he’ll turn it back to nme so.....

MR. HARRELSON: Thank you, Comm ssioner and CDQ
staff. | ampleased to be here. M board and I, we very much
appreciate the effort you've made to be here and your efforts
to make this as -- a fair and -- to make this a fair and open
process. The CDQ programis extrenely valuable to our region.
Before we begin the rest of our presentation, it seened
appropriate to say a few things about the events of the past
week or so. Qur board has been very concerned about the
process of fairly allocated the CDQ fish. Last tinme, as you
are probably aware, we were cut by one percent for reasons
which were, quite frankly, inappropriate. Because of that,
our board directed Don Mtchell to wite you a letter asking
that the process be recorded. This was agreed to by the
state. [|’ve heard it in the halls that sonmehow NSEDC has
asked the state to cancel its hearings | ast Novenber and those
accusations are incorrect and unfair. Qur board has |ong
tried to provide the best it can for the devel opnent of our
menber villages. It seened inappropriate that NSEDC s request

to provide matching grants for two community infrastructure
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projects were denied by the state. Qur board directed staff
to appeal those denials and not only did we win but the entire
CDQ programin Al aska won because all of our groups can now do
nmore for our communities. Now | hear it in the halls that
NSEDC i s a troubl enaker. Once again such accusations are
unfair. There are growng pains this admnistration inherited
fromthe Know es adm nistration. | applaud this
admnistration’s efforts to bring in for the first time, as
far as | can tell, the Departnent of Law for guidance and,
last, I want to express ny dismay at the comments by one CDQ
group in particular whose CEO suggested to the North Pacific
Managenent Council earlier this week that if we want to build
sone projects that he disagrees with, maybe we shoul d just
transition out of the program

The comm ssion of this programis not about
retribution. For 12 years, our CDQ groups have been
encouraged to work together but the | evel of antagonism
exhi bited by sonme groups is conpletely counter-productive to
such cooperation. Sone |ongstanding problens in the program
are finally being addressed and the result is it will be a CD
-- a better CDQ programfor all of us. W have raised these
and ot her issues because we have been backed into a corner and

have felt conpelled to raise them | wll tell you that in
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the presence of the CDQ team You m ght hear nothing but
prai se for the current system and nothing but opposition to
change but also in these sane halls, many of the top managers
of the CDQ groups tell us quietly that they’'re glad that we're
here doi ng what we needed to do and it’s for the good of the
program

M. Comm ssioner, we believe in this program

Not hi ng that we have advocated is sone sort of death nell for

the econom c devel opnent of western Alaska. [It’s still the
progranms will be better and our communities will -- life in
our communities wll inprove as these issues get resolved. W

wer e puni shed by the | ast adm nistration for advocating
changes to the way the programwas adm nistered. This is your
chance to correct the errors of the past. W have 31 percent
of the popul ation and we have an excel |l ent performance record.
We deserve not only our one percent of the pollock back but an
increase to the level requested in our CDP is both justified
and respectfully request ed.

MR. CASHEN: Thank you, M. Harrelson. | was
just going to -- just a remnder, if you could state your nane
into the record for anyone who cones up and testifies, that
woul d be appreciated for our transcription.

MR. HARRELSON: M nane is Daniel Harrel son
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|’ mthe chairman of the board for NSDEC and represent Wite
Mount ai n.

MR. CASHEN: Thank you very mnuch.

MR. HARRELSON: Et han?

MR. ASICKSI K: Thank you. M/ nane is Eugene
Asi cksi k, president and CEO of Norton Sound Econom c
Devel opnment Corporation. | made one exception the last tine |
made sone introductions. Qur fishery biologist, Sinon Kineen,
so -- along with the rest of ny staff. The presentation that
| gave in Novenber focused on aspects of our CDP that
hi ghl i ghted projects other than our education, enploynent,
training programw th our industry partners or the usual spiel
that you hear fromthe CDQ groups. Because we have had
trouble in the past identifying what we should focus on in
t hese presentations, we’'ve decided to address the 20 criterias
laid out in the state regulation as a neans of justifying our
request. Factor one to be considered is the nunber of
participating eligible comunities and (a) the popul ati on of
each community and (b) the econom c conditions in each
community. As you know, NSEDC represents the 15 nort hernnost
comunities in the CDQ program These comunities are spread
t hroughout Norton Sound and are representative of a diverse

m x of conditions, activities and opportunities. Eastern
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Norton Sound conmunities such as Stebbens, St. M chael,
Unal akl eet, Shaktoolik have | ong been dependent on commerci al
herring and sal non fishing. Ganbell, Savoonga, D onede have
been nore focused on mari ne mammal s and None and Gol ovin are
now consi dered to be the crabbing communities. Wat | am
getting at is the diversity found in our communities and the
special conditions we need to give each one. There is no
boil erplate formula for success in our conmmunities and we are
wor ki ng to make sure each one gets the attention and help it
needs.

The | atest census dated -- data available is from
2003 and it indicates the popul ation of Norton Sound
comunities to be 8,630 people. This equates to over 31
percent of the population of the CDQ program which is a nunber
t hat should speak for itself. W feel that population is the
best factor by which to judge the needs of the CDQ comrunities
as it is an objective criteria by which all groups can be
conpared and comon knowl edge states that the econony of a
community needs to support a given population and the greater
t he popul ation, the greater size the econony needs to be.
Criteria 1-A suggests that we are grossly under-all ocated
CDQ s.

The per capita incone condition of Norton Sound
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communities is also noteworthy as it is a good neasure of the
average incone for each of our many residents. This data
collected fromthe [ ast census in 2000 shows that NSEDC s per
capita inconme of just over $11,000 is well below that of the
top three groups. | think this shows that not only do we have
a greater per capita need but we have to do this for a | ot of
peopl e as NSEDC s popul ation of 8,630 outwei ghs the conbi ned
7,265 residents living in the three groups with higher per
capita incone than us.

NSEDC communities are ranked third of the six groups
as having the | argest percentage of residents living bel ow the
poverty level. This is just another way to denonstrate the
need of our communities for the valuable CDQ allocation.

Factor nunber two to be judged by the state teamis the size
of the allocation requested by the applicant and the proper
al | ocation necessary to achieve the m | estones and objectives
as stated in the proposed CDP. Listed on this slide are the
targeted species that we are requesting allocations of.
Pol | ock obvi ously stands out as a significant request but,
agai n, our board has determned that we are justified in
requesting this allocation not only for our significant

popul ation but for past performance. Prudence of our

investnents, in-region benefit deliveries and cuts nade to our
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al l ocation by previous adm nistration that we’ve seen shows to
be unwarrant and wong. Additional revenues generated by the
increase in pollock fishing would go a long way to bringing
necessary funding to the region to address the needs of our
communities, as well, increasing our investnents in the Bering
Sea and, thereby, our net worth overall. As it stands, all of
our funds dedicated to in-region projects are expanded each
year and nore requests are turned away all the tine.

Addi tional pollock royalties would assist greatly. W are
requesting a nodest increase in Pacific cod to support our two
long line vessels and to nore accurately reflect our high
popul ati on nunber of comrunities. Qur request for Atka
mackerel, the yellowfin sole, rock sole and flathead sole is
for an increased anount fromthe previous allocation as there
is to afford -- and is there to afford us the opportunities to
provide fair and equal opportunities for reestablishing

busi ness rel ationships with our partners in the H&G fleet. W
are requesting significant increase in halibut in both 4-D and
4-E. W have denonstrated the ability to provide CDQ s to
residents in our communities in 4-D and 4-E while adapting to
secure very lucrative cleanup fisheries. It nust be noted
that residents of Savoonga who have historically taken a | arge

percent age of the halibut have been very busy in the past
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several years with steady HAZ- MAT cl eanup jobs and ot her
construction, that we wll return to halibut fishing once
these jobs end. W have a plant in Savoonga that will reopen
for operations once it is needed and we expect a | ot of
halibut to go through it. Additionally, our investnents in
both | arge vessel |oan program and the Norton Sound Seaf ood
Center in Nonme nmakes halibut a high priority within our

region. As our fishernmen beconme nore experienced, they wll
need greater allocations to neet their needs. Qur seafood
plant in Nome will also need as nmuch product as we can put
into it to make ends neet. W are requesting a snall increase
inthe Bristol Bay crab to reflect our excellent utilization
and profits as well as to accommodate our ownerships in Norton
Sound ventures. Please note that we are requesting a hundred
percent of the Norton Sound red king crab CDQ for 2006 and
2008. This is a special request fromour fishernmen who could
really use the entire allocation which only anmpbunts to around
25,000 pounds. The CDQ fisheries conducted prior to the open
access fishery in Norton Sound and allows our fishernen to get
t he ki nks worked out of their systens and find the crab for
the larger fishery. NSEDC staff also has been burdened with
managi ng a quota of around 13,000 pounds between approxi mately

20 fishermen. The logistics of this have been very difficult
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with many fishernmen electing not to participate due to the
econom cs of such a small quota. Additionally, it should be
known that Norton Sound fishernmen harvest not only NSEDC s
guota in 2004 but all of the CDQ allocation. While NSEDC was
not given the luxury of using this additional quota for
managenent, three Norton Sound fishernen were hand-pi cked by
the other CDQ holders to take their quota which did benefit
our fishernmen. Finally, we are requesting a 49 percent share
of the Aleuti -- eastern Aleutian Island golden king crab to
make up for the effects of rationalization and addition to the
CDQ program As you know, NSEDC is invested in crab vessels
whose fishery would, under rationalization, give themrights
to an estimated 49 percent of the fishery. NSEDC s investnent
was dil uted when gol den king crab was added to the CDQ program
and this request of 49 percent will bring our investnent back
to where we were before wi thout additional benefits.

Fact or nunber three to be considered is the degree,
if any, to which each CDQ project is expected to develop a
sel f-sustaining | ocal fishery econony and proposed schedul e
for transition fromreliance on an allocation to econonc
sel f-sufficiency. NSEDC board has taken its investnent policy
very seriously and has devel oped a | ong-term cash allocation

strategy that | will cover in the next slide. Al of NSEDC s
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i ncome- produci ng i nvestnents are oriented to enhance cash fl ow
and do just that. Qur return on investnents have been very
adm rabl e and have set standards that the other groups should
try to achieve. W also have nmade significant investnents in
shore-side infrastructure which will also be covered in a
| ater slide. NSEDC has devel oped vi able conmmercial fisheries
wi thin the region maki ng them accessible to residents. Crab
and halibut fisheries are now tops in the region which not
| ong ago woul d be consi dered unt hi nkable. Finally, our
investnment in the education and training of residents shoul d
not be overl ooked as investnents that contribute significant
to a sustainable fishing econony in our region. Wthout the
peopl e there to nmake it happen, we’'d be left w th nothing.
This flow chart outlines our sinple but effective
| ong-term cash allocation strategy that the NSEDC board
adopted and has proven to be very effective in both delivering
benefits to nmenber communities and buil ding the strength of
our corporation. Qur harvest royalties are split evenly
bet ween direct benefits to nenber communities and the incone-
produci ng of fshore fishery investnent managed by NSIC
Seventy-five percent of all cash income from such investnents
are then reinvested back into the sane sort of investnents and

the other 25 percent of these second generation funds are
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dedi cated to supplenent CDQ royalties on direct projects and
progranms in the region. This guideline is incorporated in the
i nvestnent agreenent with NSIC. W regret -- we regard self-
sufficiency as regional economc self-sufficiency. @Gven the
econom ¢ depressed conditions in our nenber conmunities, the
anount of cash needed to raise the standard of living to nore
acceptable levels is in the thousands of dollars. In
conparing our region’ s per capita inconme of just over 11,000
with the nearly 18,000 per capita the three groups have, about
-- the three groups above us, let’s take one exanple. Wat if
we wanted to create a portfolio in investnents in the Bering
Sea or anything else that is income-producing that could
support a 5,000 per capita increase in our region with 9,000
residents? That portfolio would have to be 900 mllion in
size. |If we use the kind of payout that the permanent fund
thinks is sustainable, then that -- they think that you
shoul dn’t count on nore than five percent of your assets as a
sust ai nabl e payout. W are at 70 mllion or so and cli nbing
steadily. W just are not there yet.

Fact or nunber four, the degree, if any, to which
each CDQ project is expected to generate a capital or equity
in local fishery econonmy or infrastructure or (b) investnents

in comercial fishing or fish processing operations. A nunber
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of our CDQ projects are expected to generate capital and
equity in the local fishery econony as well as make

i nvestnments in comrercial operations. The in-region capital
and i nvestnent projects include the shore-side infrastructure
program whi ch has built fish plans, harbors, docks, ice making
facilities, boat ranps, etcetera, and will continue to do so
in communities until they are fully equipped. Norton Sound
Seaf ood Products has made significant expenditures to secure
facilities and operations for local fisheries. The fishing
devel opnent programis designed to cultivate new and exi sting
fisheries wwthin the region. The revol ving | oan program has
provided residents with many |large fishing vessels and

associ ated gear as well as purchasing fishing permts. The
sal non rehab programis charged with restoring sal non runs and
projects such as noist air incubation should help revive
salnon runs within the region which could eventually bring
commercial fishing back to areas where it has di sappeared. W
feel that we are doing a lot to pronote fishing within the
region and are proud of our effects. It should also be noted
that we are making significant investnents in comrercial
fishing for our long-termcash allocation strategy. Qur funds
for equity purchase, funds for harvest vessel purchase and

funds for | FQ purchases are all well-managed and accessi bl e
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for future investnents. Again, our past perfornmance should be
a good indication that we are likely to nake strong,
significant investnments in offshore fisheries. Any offshore
pol Il ock deal is likely to be very expensive and we are

devel opi ng our position to nmake that happen.

Fact or nunber five, the applicant’s contractual
relationship, if any, with joint venture partners and the
managi ng organi zation. NSEDC is currently engaged in a couple
of joint ventures with Norquest for herring, Royal Aleutian
Seaf oods for custom processing of crab. Norton Sound herring
obviously not a CDQ fishery but team ng with Norquest to
process herring in Norton Sound is a choice the board has
consciously made to relay benefits to our 300 herring permt
hol ders in eastern Norton Sound. NSEDC and now NSSP has been
assisting herring fishernmen in various joint ventures,
undertaki ng and providing markets since 1993. Insuring our
herring fishery has been a great way for NSEDC to provide
benefits to a |large nunber of fishernmen. Custom processing
wi th Royal Al eutian Seafoods was initially a one-sided
operation but recently, NSEDC began entering into joint
processi ng and sal es arrangenents and has been enjoyi ng
greater financial return. NSEDC has devel oped a flexible CDQ

processi ng agreenent with Royal Al eutian Seafoods which
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provi de opportunities to custom process, joint venture or both
during a particular fishery.

Qur relationship with Royal Al eutian Seafood has
al so benefitted the crab fishernen and supported product sales
for NSSP and the Norton Sound crab fishery. NSEDC owns 50
percent of d acier Fish Conpany who harvests our pollock and
cod. Operating agreenents are in place to design each
conpany’s role in the process. W also have tried and true
harvest agreements with GFC which have served us well over
time. NSEDC al so owmns 50 percent of Norton Sound Ventures,
LLC whi ch owns four crab boats, one of which is going to the
buy- back program Again, we have both operating agreenents
and harvesting agreenments with Norton Sound Ventures. NSEDC
mai ntai ns conpetitive and productive harvest agreenents for
all of our CDQ fisheries. W’ve generated over 85 mllion in
harvest royalties and have an excellent track record in
efficiently harvesting our CDQ s. All of these harvest
agreenents are in our community devel opnent pl an.

Fact or nunber six, the applicant and the applicant’s
harvesting and processing partner, if any, involvenent and
diversity of all facets of harvesting and processing.  acier
Fi sh Conpany, our partner in pollock and cod, operates catcher

processors and, therefore, manages all of the harvesting and
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processing. The product goes through to a whol esal e | evel
mar keti ng through d acier Seafood International, a division of
d aci er Fish Conpany, before it finally | eaves our possession
For crab, NSEDC uses catcher crab vessels but, as nmentioned
before, we are also involved in custom processi ng and
pur chasi ng of CDQ crab which has generated an additional $1.3
mllion for us. It is fair to say that NSEDC and partners are
well vested in all facets of the harvesting and processing in
the Bering Sea.

Fact or nunber seven, the coordination, cooperation
with other applicants or CDQ groups on CDQ projects. The
desi gn and nature of the CDQ program pronotes conpetition
first, cooperation second anongst the six CDQ groups. This
said, NSEDC has in the past and will continue in the future to
be open to communi cation and cooperation with other groups on
a variety of CDQ issues and concerns including CDQ harvest
managenent. Qur cooperation with a nunber of the other groups
is transferred of target or by-catch quotas in order to
maxi m ze harvests have been very excellent.

Fact or nunber eight, the experience of the
applicant’s industry partner, if any. NSEDC is fortunate to
have a very know edgeabl e harvesting partner for our poll ock,

cod and crab. dacier Fish Conpany is run by Eric Brevik (ph)

METRO COURT REPORTING
745 West Fourth Avenue, Suite 425
Anchorage, Alaska 99501
(907) 276-3876

-21-



who is considered by many to be the cream of the crop in
overal |l managenent of pollock conpanies. Eric fornmed the
conpany in 1982 after already spending 27 years in the fishing
i ndustry. He has been involved in nearly every aspect of
operation since and has |led d acier Fish Conpany through it
al |, devel opi ng new product fornms along the way such as the
shatter-pack cod filets, pollock filets, deep skin pollock

bl ock. Eric was named the Northwest Fisheries Association Man
of the Year in 2004. Norton Sound Venture Managenent is
conprised of Kim Hanson, Terry Cosgrove and Russ Moore. They
have conbi ned decades of experience both in conpany nmanagenent
and in vessel operation managenent.

Fact or nunber nine, the applicant’s CDQ project for
enpl oynment, education and training the provides career track
opportunities. NSEDC has a strong education, enploynent and
training programthat has been in existence since the
i nception of the CDQ program Qur education conponent has
provi ded post-secondary vocational scholarships to 634
residents with a majority of those residents receiving
mul ti pl e schol arshi ps throughout their schooling for a total
of $1, 566, 256 in schol arshi ps awarded to date. W have
pilots, doctors, teachers, nurses, dental hygienists,

bi ol ogi sts and engi neers all having received schol arshi ps from
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NSEDC and returning to the region, therefore making the
econony future of our region stronger. Qur training conponent
provides platforns for fishery-related training such as
fishery safety orientation training at AVTEC. This training
provides a career track for residents to becone enpl oyed on
our partner’s dacier Fish Conpany’s vessels and our industry
-- and other industry vessels.

Mari ne navi gational and vessel safety training, this
training has been provided in the region in all of our
communi ties and provides our residents with skills needed for
t heir subsistence and comrercial fishing endeavors. Sal non
and roe technician training has been provided to residents
interested in working for our division, Norton Sound Seafood
Products in our regional plants. Six-pack vessel |icense
training has been provided to residents and those successfully
receiving their hundred-ton or 200-ton |icenses have been
enpl oyed by NSEDC on our regional tender vessel. One has gone
on to captain a regional vessel chartered by the University of
Al aska for research projects. W also provide training for
enpl oyees in our regional plants for their pronotion of jobs
requiring greater skills and know edge such as quality control
positions, refrigeration technician positions, foreman

positions and plant manager positions. To date, NSEDC has
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trained over 700 residents on these platforns for a total of
$1, 367, 658.

NSEDC al so sponsors non-exenpt tenporary entry |eve
internship positions to provide opportunities to residents to
gain skills he or she needs to obtain permanent enpl oynent
such as responsibility, teammork, flexibility, critica
t hi nki ng and communi cati on and networking skills. A nunber of
NSEDC enpl oyees were first enployed as interns in our office
and now hold permanent, full-tinme positions in our conpany.
Just to highlight a few of these career track successes, Sinon
Ki neen received schol arships for his coll ege education, went
t hrough the observer training programw th the federa
governnment, was hired as an intern and now i s our in-house
fishery biologist who represents NSEDC al so on a nunber of
comm ttees and boards across the state. Virginia Nashorl uk
(ph) received schol arships for her coll ege educati on and was
hired as an intern and is now one of our accountants. Janis
| vanof f recei ved schol arships for her coll ege educati on and
was hired as an intern and now is our comunity benefits
di rector.

Enmpl oynent of our residents by our fishing industry
partners has generated over $9 nmillion in wages going back to

our region. These enploynent opportunities have been well
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recei ved by our residents not only because of the fishing
seasons allowi ng our residents to return hone for summer and
fall subsistence and commercial fishing but because d aci er
Fi sh Conpany pays prem um wages and offers a health and
pension plan to all its enployees, our 2006, 2008 CDP contains
all these -- continues all these progranms and expand themw th
increases in royalties dedicated to each of them

Fact or nunber 10, the benefits, of any, to the
state’s econony or to the econony of communities that are not
eligible to participate in the CDQ programthat are in
addition to the benefits generated by the proposed CDQ s for
participating comunities. NSEDC has provided a nunber of
benefits to communities beyond the CDQ boundaries. That
i ncludes setting up a chum sal non buying station in Kotzebue
and purchasing harvests fromtheir fishernen, extending the
educati on, enploynent, training programsuch as schol arshi ps,
trai ning and enpl oynent opportunities to the residents of
Shi shmaref, extending the training and enpl oynent
opportunities to the interior and southern comuniti es,
recogni zing that providing these benefits add to the
strengthening of the state’s econony plus it is clearly true
that an economcally strong, rural Alaska will always benefit

ur ban Al aska.
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Factor nunber 11, a denonstration through the
information submtted under 6 A A . C. 93.025(a)(11), that the
applicant has a formal, effective adm nistrative process that
sets out sone business principles and exanpl es of due
diligence that the applicant will exercise. Each of our
communities are represented on our 15-nenber board and are
el ected by their communities in their respective nunici pal
el ection process. The board has five advisory conmttees
consi sting of the executive commttee, finance conmttee,
rul es and bylaws commttee, scholarship conmttee and the
fishery devel opment commttee. Qur board and organi zation
have adopted and followed articles of incorporation and byl aws
and have corporate rules and regul ations. W also provide
yearly training for our board. That has included fiscal
responsibilities, conflict of interest, financial reports,
conprehensive and parlianentary procedures, to nane a few

In regard to our staff, we also provide training
wor kshops, have an enpl oyee educati on enhancenent policy and
follow set policies and procedures. W also have policy
setting of guidelines on capital and financial investnents.
These gui delines set out principle conditions and ot her
provisions for the types, terns and requirenments of our

investnments. A good indicator of the quality of one process

METRO COURT REPORTING
745 West Fourth Avenue, Suite 425
Anchorage, Alaska 99501
(907) 276-3876

- 26-



for making investnents is the track record. Qurs is
excellent. The rate of return we have achi eved on our
investnments in & acier Fish Conpany, Norton Sound Ventures and
the 1 FQ quota shares are truly outstanding. W have provi ded
extensive information about these investnments in the CDP and
in our quarterly reports to the state. This information is
testinony to the success of our investnents and the quality of
our adm ni strative procedures.

Factor nunber 12, the devel opnent, if any, of
i nnovati ve products and processi ng techni ques as well as
i nnovation in harvesting gear for conservation and maxi num
utilization of the fishery lessor. Sorry. It is hard for us
to predict what we may be -- do in the upcomng CDP cycle in
ternms of devel opnent that fits within these criteria.
However, when the history of NSEDC and d aci er Fish Conpany is
considered, it shows that we have a track record of maki ng and
contributing to innovations and, thereby, bettering harvesting
nmet hods. For instance, the Norton Sound worked early on with
bi rd avoi dance tubes when it was recogni zed that seabird by-
catch was a problem d acier Fish Conpany pioneered the
pol | ock deep skin block. NSEDC has maxi m zed val ue of our red
king crab by utilizing fresh markets and we hel ped to fund the

research and devel opnment of a sal non excl uded device for the
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pollock trolling. dacier Fish Conpany has al so kept at the
| eadi ng edge of technol ogy through vessel inprovenents to use
the sirim decanter process, increase product recovery as well
as inplenenting freezing rain technology on our long line
vessels for cod mlt markets. NSEDC and GDC will continue to
|l ead the way in recovery and new t echnol ogy devel opnents.
Fact or nunber 13, the applicant’s ability to
mai ntai n control over each of its allocation. NSEDC has an
excellent track record for CDQ harvest managenent. NSEDC s
managenent style has kept NSEDC away from overage problens and
out of excessive by-catch situations. Even when NSEDC was
given a disproportionately small quota of other species by-
catch for the pea cod fishery, we were still able to harvest
our quota, although the royalties suffered. NSEDC has
conpetitive and productive harvest agreenents and has never
exceeded our CDQ crab allocation, a fact that we are very
proud of. In fact, in the history of NSEDC harvesting CDQ
fisheries, we have only two small violations. W have
denonstrated our ability to maintain control over our
al I ocati on.
Factor nunber 14, the capital or equity generated by
the applicant’s CDQ project for fishery-related business

investnments. Qur 2006 through ‘08 CDP has a conbi ned total of
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nearly $21 million for capital or equity purchase through our
funds for equity purchase, fund for harvest vessel purchase
and fund for I FQ purchase. W feel that this is signific --
this is a significant budget for purpose of growh within the
fishery-related industry.

Fact or nunber 15, the past performance of the
applicant and the applicant’s industry partner as
appropriated. NSEDC has and will continue to nmaintain a
bal ance between | ocal econom c devel opnent in benefitting the
residents in our nmenber communities and active participation
in the distant water fisheries in the Bering Sea. This
bal ance i ncludes i nmedi ate benefits to our communities,
| onger-terminvestnents to provide a stable, |ong-term source
of economc strength. Qur performance is -- in benefitting
the residents of our nmenber community, has included educati on,
training and enpl oyi ng our people, building shore-side
infrastructure, providing shore-side support services to our
fi shermen, supporting the |ocal salnon, herring, crab and
hal i but fisheries, restoring salnmon runs in the region for
bot h commerci al and subsi stence users, providing |oans to
residents so they may purchase gear, permts and suitable
vessels to participate in | ocal comercial fisheries.

In total, we have provided over 52 mllion in
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benefits to our nenber communities. This is a list of some of
the capital projects that we have been involved in either as
funding partners with the comunities or as the project
devel oper. As you can see, this list includes projects
rangi ng fromproviding ice machines, railer bags in the
comunities to the Nonme navigational inprovenent project. On
the royalty and investnents side of the balance, NSEDC has
generated over 85 mllion in harvest royalties fromour CDQ
allocation and currently has a net worth of over 70 mllion.
We are al so proud of our investnents in d acier Fish Conpany
and Norton Sound Ventures. W have excell ent business
relationships with these conpani es and they have perforned
very well, providing second generation non-royalty revenues as
a result of our ownership and providing enploynent as a result
of our CDQ harvest relationships. The debt against these
investnments is | ow and represents |ess than 20 percent of the
aggregat e market val ue of these conpani es.

Factor nunber 16, the applicant’s transition plan
i ncludi ng objective set in the mlestones table submtted by 6
A A C 93.025(a)(13). First, 1'd like to point out that we
design our CDP as to not create an additional |ong-term
reliance on future allocations as a neans of staying within

the federal |aw governing the program That being said,
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would like to point out that we fully expect the CDQ program
to continue as it is witten into the Anerican Fisheries Act
and the Magnuson-Stevens Act. W wll fully expect as the
ot her groups do that the program s existence will continue and
benefits will continue to be passed on to our comunities
whi l e strengthening of the corporation will also be increased.
Qur transition plan is to continue with the board' s direction,
to use the long-termcash allocation strategy which puts a
portion of our funds into investnents in our region and our
peopl e and a portion into inconme-produci ng assets. W feel
this is prudent -- we feel this is a prudent nove given the
nature of the program

Fact or nunber 17, for each CDQ project, the
inclusion is -- the purpose -- proposed CDP of realistic
measurable m | estones for determning project -- process. In
the 2006, 2008 CDP, we have included multiple, neasurable
m | estones for each CDQ project and investnent. These
m | estones are neasured each quarter and audited each year for
conpl i ance.

Fact or nunber 18, the degree of participating
community input in devel oping the proposed CDP. 1In
preparation for this very significant round of CDQ all ocati on,

NSEDC hel d outreach neetings in each of our 15 nenber
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communities to gather information and devel op the CDP to best
meet the needs of our communities and after providing a draft
of the CDP to the communities in July, we requested further
i nput and insight about the projects and prograns laid out in
our CDP. Through this process -- though this process is a
| arge task, we feel the need to keep our residents inforned
and having their input is the nost inportant part of the
devel opnent of the CDP. W believe we may be the only CDP
group to have nmade specific visits to each community for the
sol e purpose of gathering input for this CDP

Factor nunber 19, the |likely effectiveness of the
outreach projects described in 6 AAA C 93. NSEDC has nade it
a mssion and a daily task to keep our nenber communities
i nfornmed about the prograns and opportunities we provide.
Sonme of the tools and prograns we have inplenented to keep the
resi dents updated and i nformed on NSEDC projects, prograns and
opportunities include the community outreach program whi ch has
a program coordinator and 13 liaisons in our communities, in-
region offices in both Unal akl eet and None distributing a tri-
annual newsletter, maintaining a corporate website, devel opi ng
and distributing a infonercial on NSEDC in 2004, devel oping
and distributing a Norton Sound red king crab video and

hol di ng community outreach neetings in each of our
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communi ties, corporate annual reports with financials included
that is sent to all of our box holders in our region, CDP s
and audit reports sent or provided to all community,
muni ci palities and board of directors, active recruitnment of
potential crew nmenbers through our EET departnent.

Fact or nunber 20, comments provi ded by other
agenci es, organizations and the public. Wile we do not w sh
to speak for others, we have received very high conplinents
and kudos from a vast array of people and groups w thin our
region. Concludes our presentation and we’'ll be avail able for
gquestions. Thank you.

MR. CASHEN: Thank you, M. Asicksik, M.

Harrel son and M. Kineen. 1'd like to take a five-mnute
break at this tine and go off record.

(O f record)

(On record)

MR. CASHEN.: We're back on the record. The
state has -- the CDQ team has sone questions. GCh, okay. |’'m
sorry. GCkay. |Is there any public coment on Norton Sound CDP
either in person or on |ine?

MR. JOHNSON: |’ m here.

MR, CASHEN. Sir, if you could cone forward and

state your nane for the record?
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MR, JOHNSON:. My nane is Paul Johnson from

Unal akl eet, Alaska. | ama conmmercial crabber and a newy
comercial halibut fisherman. I'mfamliar with the CDQ
program |'ma former director for NSEDC in the early years
so first of all, 1'd like to applaud NSEDC for its

acconplishnents and as a fisherman and resident, supports
their efforts and can attest to the fact that a fair
al l ocation to NSEDC certainly hel ps our region.

The area |1'd like to comment on, in particular, that
|"mnost famliar with is the |arge vessel |oan program which
|’minvolved in as a fisherman. This program whi ch takes the
pl ace of the -- what banks do or should do but don’'t do is
what NSEDC does neaning -- forgive ne for butchering the
Engl i sh | anguage -- NSEDC stepped in and nade available to
commercial fishernmen or devel oping cormercial fishernmen a | oan
programto invest in large vessels. Nornally, banks aren’t
confortable loaning to fishernen Iike nyself who really have
no assets or nothing to show for -- in those types of
fisheries. The program has been successful. W’ ve been able
to prove that we can tackle a new fishery, catch the fish and
make our | oan paynents and, hopefully, over tine, nmake a
living off it so there what NSEDC i s doi ng through those | oan

efforts and its operation of Norton Sound Seaf ood Products
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makes it possible for a fisherman |like nyself in the region
to, you know, participate in developing fisheries so | hereby
would i ke to, just for the record, say | applaud their
efforts and support the.....

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE SPEAKER  Thank you. Just
for the record, so for yourself and sone others that you' re
famliar wth, what general sized vessels are we talking about
and which fisheries are we tal king about that you' re getting
| oans for?

MR. JOHANSON:  The halibut and crab fisheries in
Norton Sound. The vessel size that | have is a 32-foot vessel
converted to 38-foot.

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE SPEAKER. Okay. Thank you.

MR, JOHNSON. Ckay.

MR. CASHEN: Thank you, sir. Any additional
public comment? Ckay. Hearing none, |I'd like to close the
public comment and the CDQ team has sone questions for Norton
Sound. Conm ssioner, would you like to take the first
gquestion?

MR. KRYA ER. Ckay. Thank you, M. Cashen.

M. Chairman and M. President, what we’ve done is we’ve spent
a great deal of tine devel opi ng these questions and we ask al

of the CDQ groups to answer the specific questions. There are
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sone questions we’'re going to be asking in executive session
but we’ve divided up the questions anong the CDQ team and |
have the first question. GCkay? And you may have answered the
question already which is fine, it just gives you an
opportunity to el aborate. Okay?

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE SPEAKER. Al |l right.

THE CLERK: Conm ssioner, could you put your
m ke on first?

MR KRYGER Ch, ny mke. Do you want ne to
repeat everything |I said? Thank you very nuch.

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE SPEAKER ~ Comm ssi oner, can
ask a question?

MR KRYJ ER  Yes.

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE SPEAKER. | think our plan is
| will answer the question or is it okay to defer to a staff
menber if it -- if you want nore technicality or.....

MR. CASHEN: That's fine. Just make sure that
they state -- if they could state their nanme for the record
when they cone up to testify, it’'d be great.

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE SPEAKER.  Thank you.

MR. KRY@ ER. Ckay. M. Chairman, Eugene, the
first question is the CDQ program has been in existence for 12

years. Please explain Norton Sound’s |ong range transition
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pl an and i nvestnent strategy to create a self-sustaining
fisheries-related econony in the region. Wat steps has
Norton Sound taken during the current allocation cycle to
achi eve this goal ?

MR. ASICKSIK: | believe when you' re saying
current, it’s the 2003 through 2005 CDP

MR KRYJ ER  Yes.

MR. ASICKSIK: | think in our CDP, we’ve
identified and laid out the long-termstrategy and | al so
covered it in our presentation earlier is to maxim ze the
returns in the allocations and al so to devel op i nvest nent
policy guidelines that, you know, will assure that the incone
that’s generated fromthe allocations we receive wll continue
to support the organi zation, the programand also infuse into
t he econony of Norton Sound and devel op new fisheries and
we’'ve also tried to bring back sone of the traditiona
fisheries that we have | ost both for comercial and
subsi st ence.

MR. DAVIS: And for the record, M. Chairnman,
this is M. Davis. Can you just give us sone exanples of
those traditional fisheries?

MR, ASICKSIK: Qur -- Norton Sound was nmainly a

-- excuse ne, do | have to say ny nane every tine?
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MR CASHEN:  No.

MR. ASICKSIK: GCkay. Norton Sound was mainly a
sal non fishery and over the years, sal non has declined.
Herring was another fishery that was very lucrative for our
residents and since the CDQ program we’ ve been involved in
buyi ng sal non building plants and we’'re mainly the main buyer
of salnmon, crab and halibut in Norton Sound. |In herring,
we’'ve joint ventured ever since 1993 in trying to keep our
fisheries alive so our |ocal comrercial fishermen either in
t he sal non and herring can continue to fish. W devel oped the
crab fishery. Started in 1993 and we | obbied along wth Earl
Krygier’s support and the Comm ssioner to nake it a
regi stration super-exclusive LLP fishery and it’s al so
excluded fromthe other crab fisheries in the state, nore for
our local residents. The Yukon Delta people were allowed to
cone in and they did participate in the early years and we’ ve
continued to develop this fishery and, as stated in ny
testinmony earlier, it is becomng a lucrative fishery for our
| ocal fishernmen. W also petitioned for a halibut fishery
first out in St. Lawence Island. W are the only group that
has residents living in the 4-D area and we were told that
there was no halibut that far north but our residents out in

Savoonga were telling us they' d been fishing halibut

METRO COURT REPORTING
745 West Fourth Avenue, Suite 425
Anchorage, Alaska 99501
(907) 276-3876

- 38-



historically for many years. W petitioned the |International
Hal i but Comm ssion for a experinmental fishery and we al so
worked with the University of Fairbanks and -- who gave us
sone support and we’ve successfully devel oped a fishery and we
petitioned for or submtted in our CDP for an allocation of
hal i but in the Norton Sound area and we got a very snal

hal i but allocation in 4-D and we continued to prove that there
is halibut to be harvested up there. W built a plant out in
Savoonga and the plant operated for many years and, as |
testified earlier, we’'ve also requested allocations in 4-E and
| don’t want to go into any details but in past CDP
applications, you know, we thought we would receive
allocations in 4-E but mainly, it’s been split between two
groups so -- the other fisheries that we’ve |ooked at is bait
fisheries. W continue to harvest our own bait in our region.
For exanple, if we have a contract with Norquest to cone up

we w Il harvest and process and they will deliver to None

80, 000 pounds of herring to be used by our crab and hali but
fishermen and we’ve also tried developing a fishery in Teller
for -- to support our winter and sumrer crab operations but we
had sonme conflict with subsistence users so we discontinued

t hat operation.

MR DAVIS: And just -- this is M. Davis again
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-- just for followup, do you have any new products that you
m ght develop fromthose traditional fisheries; that is, |ike
new sal non products or new marketing concepts for those
traditional fisheries?

MR ASICKSIK: W did in the past and we did
add in filet machi nes, pin-bone renoving, vacuum packing into
the plant in Unal akl eet and since the decline of the Norton
Sound sal non, mainly, the chumin western Al aska dictates the
fisheries, we then went into the Kotzebue Region and we flew
fish in from Kot zebue to Unal akl eet and we produced the Arctic
Keta (ph) which sure fish to -- for a filet in the Washi ngton
area. W’ ve also developed a live crab whol e cooked section
and fresh crab out of Nonme and early on, we brought in the
Northern G acier to develop a pink fishery in Norton Sound and
created pink filets for the school |unch programand al so for
MacDonal d’s and Ms. Paul’s and various other conpani es but
due to declining salnmon and restrictions, basically, if
there’s no chuns, you have no king fishery -- king sal non
fishery or you have no pink sal non fishery because of
i ncidental or by-catch problens with chum sal non that has
declined, as you all know, in western Al aska and halibut is
anot her product that -- you know, we’'ve fileted and steaked

and shi pped out of None into Anchorage and the Washi ngton area
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and we’ ve al so devel oped sone markets for our large halibut in
t he Canadi an.

MR. DAVIS: Thank you very nuch.

MR. HARRELSON: 1'd like to speak. As far as
what you asked about traditional fisheries, to address
subsi stence fisheries as well with NSEDC s efforts on sal non
rehabilitation and enhancenent, as you're all aware, all of
our villages depend heavily on subsistence and with the | ack
of salnon returns, it’s been a ngjor concern in each one of
our communities. Wthout a |ot of jobs and a strong econony,
subsi stence foods in our villages are nore and nore inportant
and with the decline of the returns, we worked real hard to
i nprove the returns for subsistence users. W worked hand-i n-
hand with Fish and Gane in several of our areas, several of
our comunities. As an exanple, with the Sal non Lake project,
the return of red sal non there was only 20,000 fish for a
nunber of years. Through a feeding enrichnment programthat we
fertilize that |ake, for the last three years, we’ve been able
to increase that red salnmon return to over 70,000 fish per
year which nmakes a big difference wth what food peopl e can
put on their table. A lot of our rivers are badly hurt right
now wi th poor returns and we’'re working real hard to increase

the returns throughout the region both for commercial and
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subsi st ence use.

MR. DAVIS: Thank you.

MR. CASHEN: Thank you.

MR. KRYA ER: Gene, Norton Sound’s requested an
increase in their pollock allocation from22 to 31 percent
which is a substantial increase and you’ ve tal ked about sone
of the justification for the increase but could you provide
additional justification in terns of what types of projects
could be inplenented with the additional quota including in-
regi on projects, enploynent benefits to -- as justification
for the increase?

MR. ASICKSIK: Yes, well, first off, as stated,
you know, we’d |ike our one percent back that we thought was
unjustly taken away fromus and also the -- consistent wth,
you know, the criteria and the 20 points that | had covered
earlier in testinony is our popul ation and our need but, as
|"ve stated before and | also stated in ny testinony that the
CDQ program you know, has been a very good program for
western Al aska and there are conpani es and fisheries are being
rationalized and so not only quotas but also fish conpanies
have seen this and the price is going up. So in order to
sustain the gromh that we need for our region, we are, you

know, requesting a larger allocation and in the region, we
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have projects that are requested fromour communities that we
are unable to make. W have breakwaters, harbors, sone

addi tional seafood plants. A good exanple, | guess, is the
project up in None, the navigational inprovenent. That, you
know, was strongly recomended that we participate in that
with a $3 mllion contribution fromNSEDC to the City of None.
It was strongly recomended by the state CDQ teamin previous
years and the project is ongoing now and there was a ngj or
stormthat was hit up there and | also received a e-mail that,
you know, additional funds m ght be requested of NSEDC and
there are other fisheries that we are looking at and trying to
bring back the salnon. There is the state agency, the federal
agency. Basically, they have offices up there but they are
not doi ng any enhancenent to -- other than, you know, counting
the fish and that has inpacted our fishing communities greatly
SO we're trying to enhance or cone up with projects.

W -- we’'ve worked very hard with the $5 nmillion and
the steering commttee and the state on -- you know, that was
received from Senator Stevens for the disaster but we do have
resident fishernmen that would Iike to go beyond crab and
hal i but and, you know, that is sonmething that in our January
meeting, we will be revisiting where our fishernmen would |ike

to go beyond Norton Sound and into the Bering Sea for other
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fisheries.

MR, HARRELSON: Could | add.....

MR. CASHEN. M. Harrel son?

MR. HARRELSON: |1'd like to add -- yeah, |I'm
Dan Harrel son. As far as the nunmerous requests that we get
for our -- fromour comunities for a varied of different
projects, a lot of themnow are comng in as using a portion
of our funds wth other state or federal funds to -- well,
many different things. As you' re aware, a |lot of our villages
don’t have sewer and water. W’re |ooking at those projects,
community building, etcetera. Any project that goes into the
community is going to nean jobs for our |ocal people up there
and unenpl oynent is so high, poverty levels are so high, it’s
critical that we do whatever we can do to assist these
vil | ages.

MR. CASHEN. Do you have any estinate on what
the additional quota would translate into in terns of
enpl oynent in your region, just a -- | nean, has that been
di scussed or -- based on the projects you have proposed?

MR. ASI CKSI K:  Qur 50 percent ownership into
d aci er Fish Conpany, two md-water factory trawl ers, the
PACI FI C GLACI ER and t he NORTHERN GLACI ER, they do operate but

additional fish would, you know, nmake it nore efficient and
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that, in turn, would give our residents | onger opportunities
and nore opportunities and probably nore positions to go on
the boats. Every one of our harvesting agreenents stipul ates
that they have to be in the enploynent section for residents
of our region and that, you know, alone just in pollock would
add to benefits to our region. It also would bring in a
greater royalty for -- naturally, for, you know, the
additional fish to neet sonme of our communities’ needs and the
organi zation and also to expand our participation in the
Bering Sea fisheries.

MR. CASHEN. Ckay. Thank you. M. Stiles?

MR STILES: Yes. 1'd like to speak about the
enhancenent efforts of NSEDC. None is probably the nost
affected by the cuts in fishing tine, not only for subsistence
as a resource but also tourismand not having the fish to
attract and keep tourists in the area affects our econony and,
as you may know, None attracts a -- quite a nunber of tourists
each year but through either birding or -- bird watching or
ot her things but there’'s no fishing resource for themand |
think if we had a further allocation, we could use those -- we
could use that to further enhance the tourist industry.

MR. CASHEN: Thank you, M. Stiles. Thank you,

Eugene and M. Harrel son. Conmm ssioner, do you -- take
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MR. BLATCHFORD: | have question nunber three
to Norton Sound, M. Chairman. How does Norton Sound f eel
about public disclosure of conpensation |evels for key
personnel ?

MR. HARRELSON: | can address that. The board
of directors have no problemw th disclosure of that at all.
We’ve done it in the past, | think, in our past COP's. It’s
public know edge and no problemw th it.

MR ASICKSIK: 1'd |like to al so add that we do
-- being a nonprofit organi zation, we do submt a 990 that
becones public for anyone that wants to | ook at it, although

it’s, you know, a past tense but annually, we have submtted a

990.

MR. CASHEN: Thank you. M. Davis?

MR DAVIS: COkay. 1'd like to ask a two-part
guestion. The first is what are -- what is Norton Sound’ s

current and future plans for enploynment with its harvesting
and processing partners?

MR. ASICKSIK: Well, we do have a educational,
enpl oynent, training departnment and | believe we’'re the only
CDQ group that runs our residents through a training program

at Avtec to make sure that they have all the certifications
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needed to be a -- on vessels and we continue to work with our
partners -- our harvesting partners to increase our enploynent
nunbers and we continue to recruit people fromour region and
t he EET department al so nmakes village visits to introduce to

t he upcom ng generation that, you know, there is a CDQ program
and that there are job opportunities and training and
schol ar shi ps avai l abl e.

MR. DAVIS: Thank you. Do you have any
estimate about approxi mately how many of your residents are
out fishing offshore?

MR. ASICKSIK: | believe the last slide that |
seen up in None that was taken off the state CDQ website, we
had the hi ghest nunber and think it was in like ‘82 and, as |
stated earlier, the wages that have returned to Norton Sound
are over $9 million so far and | think we’ve trained over 600
or 700 people in our region so we have in -- witten in our
contract 80 positions and | think |ast year, we -- in our
report, we had 82 people that went out there and worked that
brought alnmost a mllion dollars in wages back.

MR DAVIS: Ckay. And that -- that’s your past
performance. Do you have any future plans that differ from
t hat ?

MR. ASI CKSI K: | stated earlier with an
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i ncreased all ocation, that woul d make our boats nore
effective. That is going to add additional fishing tinme so
additional trips would be additional work for people fromny
regi on and nore people would have an opportunity to go out on
the vessels and we continue to push our EET departnent for

j ob opportunities in.....

MR DAVIS: (Okay. And |I'd also like to ask
what are your current and future plans for enploynent in in-
regi on projects?

MR. ASI CKSI K:  Agai n, our training departnent
-- this last October, the board directed nyself and the EET
departnent to expand outside of fishery related to other jobs

that are available; electrical, hydraulics, that are fishery

related -- refrigeration. Because of the facilities that we
have, 1’'m-- that we operate in the region, we need nore
technical people. It is a very tricky operation to try and

keep crabs alive, you know, for a week so we need peopl e that
W Il understand a |live tank operation. It seens fairly sinple
but to nove |live product which is pretty val uable, we need
speci al i zed people to, you know, keep the equi pnent running
and so we’'re encouragi ng people to go to training and al so as
the large -- larger vessels and switching fromoutboard to

i nboard diesel, that needs service so we’re al so encouragi ng
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peopl e to get experience or certification in diesel nechanic
and hydraulics is another thing that is somewhat new al t hough
it’s been around in the area but as we get nore vessel s that
are using hydraulics, you need people that can work on these
al so -- although sone of the fishernmen have, you know, a |ot
of experience but there are opportunities that are being nade
because of the CDQ program and our involvenent and being the
sol e buyer and processor and owner of nost of the equipnent up
in the region now

MR. DAVIS: Okay. M. Chairman?

MR. HARRELSON: And I'd |ike to add -- answer
as well. The board s taken a position as far as harvesting
agreenents and we’ ve mandated that any harvest agreenent that
we enter into to soneone, that we address putting sonme of our
| ocal people up on those boats and to date, that’'s been done.
That opportunity exists both with 3 acier Fish and also with
Norton Sound Ventures. |In regards to enploynent, the board
has taken a strong position on using |ocal hire wherever we
can in our projects. The expansion in both the crab fisheries
and the halibut fisheries has been an enpl oynent boon for a
| ot of guys that weren’t working. W got guys out there
runni ng boats now. W’ ve got deck hands that are com ng from

the villagers -- fromthe villages work a year or two and
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getting involved in the fishery and pretty soon, they're
asking for their own boats. Both the Norton Sound Seafood
Plant in Nonme and the Unal akl eet plant pretty nmuch enpl oy
entirely local people and it’s an asset to the conmunity of
None, to Unal akl eet and to the surrounding villages for the
fol ks that go fromthose villages to Nonme or Unal akl eet to go
to work.

MR DAVIS: And just if | could follow up?
This is M. Davis. Can you give us any nunbers on how many
peopl e are enployed at the Norton Sound Unal akl eet pl ants?

MR HARRELSON. Can |.....

MR. DAVIS: Do you have a num-- do you have
t he nunber -- do you have any -- an exact figure -- the
bal | park figures first?

MR. HARRELSON: The -- nope, still have to give
a ball park figure because |ike when the crab |lines are up and
runni ng, we got a bunch of guys there. Wen there’s no crab
deliveries, you know, they go along for a couple days. The
same with halibut.

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE SPEAKER  You have. .. ..

MR. HARRELSON: Personnel ... ..

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE SPEAKER: .. ... (1 ndi scernible

- interference).
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MR. CASHEN:. That'd be great.

MR. DAVIS: Sure. That'd be fine. Thank you.

MR. MAGUI RE: Tom Maguire and |’ mthe
oper ati ons manager for Norton Sound Seafoods. Qur two main
processing centers is a salnon plant in Unal akl eet where we're
doi ng salmon. The years that we did fileting and pin-boning,
we woul d have a workforce of around 46 to 48 people. That
i ncluded the freezer crews. Wen we were doing just H&G we
run the plant with about 25 people. The crab line in None
when we were doing live, fresh and frozen products, dependi ng
upon the volume that’'s delivered but it takes about 32 people.
That includes a dock unloading crew. Also, | don't know if
| " m speaki ng out of turn here but there are two of us in
managenent of the conpany that are not wthin the region.
Every other job pertaining to Norton Sound Seafoods including
t he vessels, the crews on the vessels, the tenders,
refrigeration, quality control are all |ocal residents of the
region. There are just two of us who are not.

MR. DAVIS: Thank you.

MR. CASHEN. M. Krygier, want to take the next
gquestion?

MR, KRYA ER (Okay. GCene, | was trying to | ook

at -- look up the rationalization of the crab that the counci
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struggled with and | see that you have four vessels? | guess
that’s right, four crab vessel s?

MR ASI CKSI K Yes.

MR. KRYGER Are any of those CP or are they
all catcher boats?

MR. ASICKSIK: They’'re all catcher boats.
think the CP was on the -- now the GLACI ER BAY which we’ ve
acquired to the quota, | believe.

MR KRY@ ER So.....

MR. ASICKSI K:  Excuse nme, | mght have to defer
to Steve Rieger, NSIC managenent, but just to get that clear
for Cashen but yes, we do have four vessels and.....

MR KRYGER |I'mtrying to understand how --
what your -- kind of your general plans are for under crab
rationalization in utilizing both your CDQ all ocations and
your acquisitions of crab in the future just crab vessels and
permts, etcetera, in the future so | just -- if sonme of it’'s
confidential, you can save it to the later, closed part but if
you want to just -- generally, I'’mtrying to understand where
you guys are goi ng and what your plan is under crab
rationalization for the CDQ group -- corporation.

MR RIEGER M nane is Steve R eger with NSIC

The vessels that Norton Sound Ventures is operating that we
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have a partial ownership in are all operating as catcher
vessels. W did as NSIC purchase sone catcher processor quota
share so we own sone that -- or that we fit -- to be
technically accurate, we purchased the fish history which we
expect to convert to catcher processor quota upon
rationalization but we -- our operating plan is to | ease that,
not totry to, you know, put it on one of our own boats and
catch -- and process it.

MR KRYGER And I'mtrying to -- excuse ne,
you requested 49 percent and of the Aleutian Islands crab and
Eugene covered that but | didn’t -- | was trying -- | wote

down sonmething but | want to make sure | have it right. Can

you fol ks do that again for nme? |I’mtrying to understand you
request and it was sonething to do with -- is it sonme history
fromthese vessels that you -- of these four vessels that you

had and sonehow it was displaced during the rationalization
progran? |s that what | heard, the.....

MR. RIEGER The -- yeah, that is what you
heard is that it’s hard to know exactly how nuch quota you
will get upon rationalization so these nunbers are estinmates
but the fish history of the vessels that Norton Sound Ventures
is involved in are very strong in the Dutch Harbor brown crab

and the concept that we’'re trying to explain there is that
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when there is a set-aside for the CDQ program sonme of that

wi Il come out, obviously, of the open access or what was the

open access fleet including a portion that conmes fromthe

vessel s that NSEDC has an interest in and the request was to

have an allocation of CDQto bring that fish back to those

boats that was set aside for the CDQ program back to them
MR. KRYG ER Ckay. | understood that.

MR R EGER  (xay.

MR KRYGER | just want to nmake sure that’s
what -- that was correct what | heard and, let’'s see, also on
crab, as Eugene knows, |’ve been involved in the Norton Sound

crab fromDay One when we hel ped nmake it a super excl usive and

then we went through the LLP process and sone of those LLP --

maybe -- if | renmenber right and I’ mreaching back -- about 30
percent, | think, were -- went to the Yukon Delta folks.
You' re asking for, | think, all of the CDQ portion and | just

want a little nore on the rationalization of that as far as
bet ween the two.

MR. RIEGER Yes, not to take a stab at anyone
is that the last -- for 2003 through 2005 CDP application,
Yukon Delta testified that they were getting out of Norton
Sound. They’re renoving everything from Norton Sound and as

hi story has shown, they sold four boats to Russia, two boats
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to the API DCA CDQ groups that APIDCA uses for jig fishing in
the Aleutians. They still have a couple of fishernen that go
up there and I think they still own two vessels out of their
original 12 that they built and stated back in 1993,

believe, that they were going to take over the Norton Sound
herring and crab fishery. As | stated in 2003 CDP -- or this
-- the cycle that we are on, they were getting out and they
have renoved everything and the last two years -- the last two
seasons, the Norton Sound fishernmen have fished and |’ ve
worked with the -- Ragnar Allstrom (ph) to try and acquire
that quota. Two years ago, they decided to give it to three
of our fishernen in the region and we continued to be
cooperative in buying their fishernmen that conme up by their
crab. This |last year on the CDQ we discontinued rationing or
gi ving the people that have signed up for a CDQ to go out
there and fish because it came down to where an individual
woul d recei ve probably 250, 330 pounds of crab and it wasn’'t
feasible. Last year, the board nade a decision to have al

CDQ crab open and delivered to None and then we woul d not
provide a tender and that fishery lasted -- you know, in three
days, it was over which was very beneficial to the fishernen
that participated and also for NSSP and NSEDC. The -- | had,

you know, at one tinme, Yukon Delta s quota but Ragnar called
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it off because of concerns of allocation, you know, that they
weren’'t participating or harvesting so they turned that fish
or the crab over to crab fishermen wiwth our -- in our region,
as we testified in -- earlier and that was harvested and all
del i vered and processed to the plant up in Nonme and the --
concerning the LLP s and | m ght have to cone and ask you, as
you well know, there is three proposals from Norton Sound
fishermen that | haven't really | ooked at or haven't brought
to our board, all concerning crap and one of themis the 32-
foot EXEMPTION which will lead to the LLP's, the limted
license permts, that the Yukon Delta CDQ group purchased on
behal f of the corporation and the vessels cannot be separated
which in a way is a benefit because |’'ve asked Larry Cotter
since he acquired two vessels from Yukon Delta. He also
acquired the LLP's. | asked himto give ne one as a Christnas
present but John Miuller and Joe Kyle and Larry said that they
cannot separate the two vessels and | don’t know if you want
to get into the technical parts but it’s going to create a
probl emwhich is also going to be a beneficial to Norton Sound
fishermen as, you know, if that is true, then there are four
vessels over in Russia that have LLP s designed -- or

desi gnated for Norton Sound and | don’t know if they will cone

into Norton Sound and fish our CDQ | nean.....
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MR. KRYG ER. Who are they owned by?

2

Rl EGER: Excuse ne?

MR. KRYGER Who are they -- are they still

owned by. .. ..

MR. RIEGER  They sold them

MR KRYG@ER | would think the permt would go
away but we’'ll have to tal k about that nore.

MR RIEGER No, | -- I'mtrying to -- that’s

what | said, maybe at another tinme, not at this neeting, that
when the LLP proposal cones before the Board of Fish, | would
like to find out how, you know, these -- because we have
fishermen com ng up that are purchasing. W do have a | oan
program that purchased these LLP's. This past year, we had
two young gentlenmen that used our revolving | oan programto
purchase LLP's so they could participate in the crab fishery
this sumer.

MR. KRYJ ER (Okay. Let’'s see, | guess | have

a couple other questions. | just -- being onaroll, I --
listening to the other groups as we’ ve gone through, | was
just kind of asking the |ast couple groups. |’d ask the sane
question. It didn't hit ne till halfway through it. |’ mjust
wondering how well you feel -- and it |ooks |ike you' ve done
pretty well getting your -- not leaving fish on the table and
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|’ mjust wondering are you finding it very easy to work with
t he ot her groups when you find you have sonme -- getting close
to the end of a quarter, let’s say, and transferring quot as,
that they’'re -- you're having a -- is it wrking well for you,
the existing systenf

MR ASICKSIK: | will ask John Zuck, our CDQ
harvest manager, to cone up and -- for maybe additi onal
coments but we worked cooperatively with the other CDQ groups
if they need sonme assistance or if we need sone assistance but
John has sort of been the catalyst to work with the other CDQ
groups in, you know, transferring quotas and |I think this past
year, he probably did maybe cl ose to 15 anendnents, you know,
that benefitted the other CDQ groups in noving quotas around
and wi thout building himup too high, 1'll just defer maybe if
he wants to.....

MR. ZUCK: Gene pretty nmuch answered it. John
Zuck, CDQ harvest manager. Yeah, it’'s worked real well. |
mean, we’'ve worked with just about every CDQ group when there
was a situation that arises where we need additional by-catch
species or they do to transfer and, actually, it’s been real
good working with the state in technical anmendnents that can
be done within a day. 1'd say it becones a problemif a -- an

amendnent takes |onger than a certain period of tinme but we’ ve
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not run into that so it’s been very quick so | guess that’s
about all | can say.

MR. KRYA ER. Ckay. Wat about have you had
much problemw th sone of your sable fish with whal es and
things like that or are you using pots and things? Wat are
you doing in that general area?

MR. ZUCK: Yeah, the sable fish fishery has
been very difficult and there -- that’'s really for a couple of
reasons. One is the problemw th interaction with whales in a
hook and line fishery and so we have been nostly trying to
work with pot boats and we worked in the past with a conpany
cal l ed Concept Fisheries which has gone out of business and
what they had was the m sconception in this |last year with the
PACI FI C SQJOURN, anot her pot boat, and part of the problemare
there’s not many boats out there that are pot boats that have
LLP endorsenents for ground fish fisheries. That is a
requirenment for us to fish our CDQ and we had this | ast year
three or four different conpanies that cane to us interested
in fishing our CDQ and when we said that, they basically
scattered. The investnent to get an LLP endorsenent can be,
you know, $100,000 and it’s just not that productive and
lucrative of a fishery. Even using the pots -- | nean, it’s a

grind and it’s a slow fishery and we’ve done very well in the
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past in our sable fish fisheries in the Bering Sea and
Al eutian Islands. This year we didn’t just because the
problemin getting boats but that’s not unusual, | think. The
fleet in general for IFQ s left about 50 percent in the water,
both the Al eutian Islands and the Bering Sea, and CDQ groups
| eft nost of quota in the Aleutian Island and about half, |
think, in the Bering Sea so it’s a real grind. There are sone
things that could be done, | think, to inprove the fishery
that -- with the hook and line use of hook and line, whales is
a problemand there are also by-catch [imtations, a real
problemw th sort of rock fish species that we have nearly no
guota for. So the fishery is very difficult.

MR. KRYG ER  And turbot with Atka mackerel ?

MR, ZUCK: Pardon?

MR. KRYG ER  And turbot was a problemwth
At ka mackerel as far as by-catch or not?

MR. ZUCK: Ch, not for us.

MR KRYGER Ckay. | knewit was -- with sone
groups, it was, yes.

MR ZUCK: It was and, you know, | -- |I'msure
you tal ked to them about that situation and part of that has
to do with the extrapolation of catch data that created a

situation. W assisted APIDCA in harvesting sonme of the
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mackerel after they ran into that very problem so.....

MR. KRYA@ ER. That brought up one other thing
whi ch you just kind of flipped the switch on ne is are you
guys seeing that the observer coverage that the CDQ groups are
having to carry is causing you nore problemthan let’s say
w th some of your vessels that are -- have to carry a hundred
percent observer coverage but instead of 200, they' re --
sonetimes when that extra coverage i s causing you nore
problenms with, let’s say, interpretation?

MR. ZUCK: The coverage itself is no problem

MR. KRYG ER. Except the expense.

MR, ZUCK: Yeah, and it really has not been a
probl em and we’ve work well with deep servers and we have the
ability to put in an alternative plan for various fisheries
li ke we have with our |ine catcher processors which allows us
to work with a single observer on a catcher processor. 1In
fishing, basically what anmobunts to is alittle nore
conplicated than this but fishing halftime and under certain
ci rcunstances, that’s a huge benefit, |ike at the begi nning of
a fishery, at the end of a fishery where the boat access and
CDQ may overlap a little so we’ve not had any problens. |
give talks to the observer training center, work with the

Level Two observer trainers over there. W talk all the tinge,
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you know. | don’t have any problemw th that. The only issue
perhaps with the observers is sonme of the data collection and
extrapol ati on basket sanples, you know, at tinmes is just not
an accurate portrayal on a vessel by vessel, haul by hau

basis of what is in a catch. | think that -- statistically,

that’s nmeant to be spread over the fleet, a |arger sanple.

MR. KRYG ER. The problemw th the vessel by
vessel

MR. ZUCK: Yeabh.

MR. CASHEN: Yeah. | agree. kay. Sir, one
nore question for you. Just mght as well get it out of the
way. This -- probably for Eugene and this is -- | was
i npressed with your overall scholarship and training program
you guys have and all of the different groups. Like sonebody
this week has nmentioned that BP had a spread in the paper
about, you know, their scholarship programand | think the CDQ
groups as a whole would put themto shanme with how nuch
schol arshi p you guys have put out and the training that --
that’s up there, | think, is really inportant for the
comuni ties but at the council, the -- | heard sonme of the
fol ks nention that they didn’t think that schol arship and

training was necessarily a fishery-related activity and,
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certainly, sonme isn't but I think nost of it is. These are
fishing conmunities and nost of what you' re doing is training
and stuff to keep fishing communities alive and | just -- if
you’ ve got any -- want to expound a little bit nore on sone of
t he personal things you ve seen as far as the value of that
trai ning and the schol arshi ps and how you think that m ght be
specifically a fishery-related activity, |'d appreciate
hearing that.

MR. ASICKSIK: Well, early on, you know, when
we reviewed applications or | should say Jerry lvanoff who's
ran our education, enploynent, training departnment who woul d
have been here but Penair had to over at Unal akl eet two days
in arow so, unfortunately, he didn't make our Christmas party
or he couldn’t be com ng today and nmake our staff party but --
and also this presentation but, you know, we considered that
and the residency issue was al so sonething that we spent a | ot
of time on and -- but is, you know, fishery related and I
think the first incident that we kind of were challenged to
was soneone wanted to go to a barber school and the concl usion
we got to was that fishernmen do need haircuts so it is fishery
related. Oherwise, there'd be a |lot of long-haired fishernen
around but overall, | think since the devel opnent or the

i ntroduction of the CDQ program and the conmunities that it
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has affected and then the subsistence use, you know, in -- or
added as a criteria and now the 65 villages that participate,
you know, granted not all of themare comrercial fishing so it
was allowed to have, you know, education, training and
schol arships and | think it has been very beneficial for, you
know, all 65 communities, as, you know, | think, six of ny
staff have gone through schol arships -- through our
schol arshi p program and sone through our internship program
and there are a nunber of people that -- in our region that
have gone through our scholarships. As we’'re flying for our
community outreach neetings to the communities, two pilots,
you know, that have gone through our schol arship program and I
think it’s only NSEDC that offers schol arships for instrunent
flying here in Anchorage, the two pilots were very grateful
and, you know, proud that they were flying NSEDC staff to the
communities and they would not be flying for the airlines up
in our region and we have, you know, a nunber of other people
within the region, teachers, that would not be teaching
bi ol ogy which is, in ny opinion, fishery related, if they
weren’'t allowed to get scholarships fromNSEDC so | think it’s
been very beneficial for, you know, the young people in our
regi on.

MR. CASHEN:. Yes, M. Stiles?
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MR. STILES: Yes, Don Stiles from Nome. |
woul d like to use our vice president, Janis Ivanoff, as an
exanpl e of what our schol arshi p program has done. Her
education was not directly fishery related but she is working
for us as the vice president of this corporation in part due
to the scholarship programand that’s just one exanple of what
t he schol arshi p program has done for the people in our region.

MR. CASHEN: Thank you. M. Harrelson?

MR. HARRELSON: And I'd like to add as far as
the -- sonme of the judging criteria the CDQ teamis supposed
to use for allocation includes benefits that our requests wl|
bring forth to the state. Any scholarship that we give to
sonebody, regardless if it’s fishing related -- directly
fishery related or indirectly fishing related or if it gives
t hat person an opportunity to get a job, to get a career, it’s
going to benefit not only our community but the state overal
i n reduci ng unenpl oynent, reducing the dependence that a | ot
of our villages have on public assistance. As a further
exanple, I’mgoing to use ny own son as far as how NSEDC has
been benefitted him He graduated from hi gh school | ast
spring. First thing he did is he went through our training
program down in Seward. Spent two weeks down there getting

trained. Two weeks later, he was out on a boat fishing. He
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was able to earn $3,000 for one trip fishing. Wth our

schol arship program it added to his noney that he was able to
save and he’s down in Seward right now going through Avtec for
a industrial electricity course. Going to graduate in June
and he wants to get right into the |BEWunion. He' s hoping
that he’'s going to be working on the gas pipeline that m ght
go through so it's taking a kid out of our village that --
instead of sitting there and stagnating and not doing
anyt hi ng, maybe getting m xed up with al cohol, drugs,

unenpl oyed, just sitting in the village, we’ re doing
worthwhile things with themand turning himinto productive
citizens for our comunities.

MR. CASHEN: Thank you. M. Davis, do you want

to.....

MR. DAVIS: Want me to take that one?

MR CASHEN: Ckay.

MR. DAVIS: Eugene, is.....

MR. HARRELSON:. Excuse nme, we have one nore
coment .

MR. DAVIS: Onh, sure.

MR. OXEROKX: M nane is Frank Oxerok. | cone
fromthe village of Wales and it's a small -- one of the

smal l er communities that NSEDC serves and the schol arship
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program | sit on that conmttee and | think it’s very
beneficial to our region because we have people that go to
training and then well, people took Iike (indiscernible) and
peopl e took -- turn to be productive people. W have one
young girl that’s going to nursing school and she was one of
the beneficiaries of our scholarship and I knowit’s not
fisheries related but | think she plans to get her nurse’s
training then and then conme back to Norton Sound area to work
at the hospital and |I think naybe that’s good. Maybe one of
our fishernmen get hurt, she’'ll be one -- the one that wll be
taking care of himso yeah, the schol arship nonies that NSEDC
is 1’d say a big help to our region. You know, it’s
benefitting the econony and keep our young people busy. It’s
conme that way.

MR. CASHEN.: G eat. Thank you. M. Peterson?

MR. PETERSON: Hi, my nane is Dean. |I'mfroma
small community of Golovin and Iike Wales, we -- we’'ve got a
teaching staff up there of six people and out of the six
peopl e, we got four from Montana and two from Gol ovin. That
shows a lot for the scholarship program It’s -- and both of
t hese have finished the schol arship program and, on the other
hand, we’ve had -- since the start of our program we’ve had

13 people out of a community of 150 that made use and
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conpl eted col |l ege out of the scholarship program | think
that’s -- shows a lot for a small comunity.

MR, CASHEN. Ckay. Thank you. Anyone el se?
Ckay. Eugene, in 2002, the council reconmmended an al |l owance
for non-fisheries related investnents and | was just wondering
if you could tal k about sonme of NSEDC s ideas for in-region
sust ai nabl e econom ¢ -- non-fisheries econom c devel opnent
proj ects.

MR. ASICKSIK: Well, you know that NSEDC s
position wasn’t to go in that direction, it was pretty much
the steering commttee that was fornmed by the council and we
want ed, you know, a different type but since anmendnent 71 was
introduced with a 20 percent allowance for non-fishery
related, we don’t have any plans right now. You know, we
continue to |l ook at our region in fisheries and we al so have,
you know, an issue or the second generation or we're | ooking
to build NSEDC to where it can benefit but if that is, you
know, going to nove forward -- you know, on the 20 percent but
anendnent 71(a), we also, you know, still have sone concerns
about it. | think, you know, that we will address it when it
cones -- or it becones approved and -- but, to ny know edge,

t he NSEDC board of directors or NSEDC staff had not put down,

you know, a wish |[ist of once this happens, this is what we’'re
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going to do so -- and even in our 2006 through 2008 CDP, we
did not take into consideration for the 20 percent all owance
of non-fisheries.

MR. CASHEN. M. Harrel son?

MR. HARRELSON: 1'd like to address that as
well, M. Cashen. 1In the past, NSEDC has been forced to turn
down ideas and projects requested by various villages just
because they were disallowed. W anticipate probably a |ot of
our northern villages that don't have a strong fishing history
comng forth wwth projects that will have a positive econom c
i npact on their villages. As an exanple, the -- I’'ll use the
village of Wales. At one point in tine, they cane into us and
tal ked to us about putting together a coop where they would
have a coop where their ivory carvers could carve, market and
sell their ivory and had a request before us but we were
(indiscernible) so | do feel that you'll see a nunber of
projects conme fromvillages that will help those villages in
the long run but | think that would -- to add, you know,
conflict with our long-termcash allocation or our strategy
that the board has approved the way we had presented it in our
presentation earlier and we -- if anmendnent 71(a) does pass,
you know, it’'d sort of be |ike a wench in a wheel as we’ ve,

you know, evolved over the last 12 years and it -- we’d have
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to look at it though. | mean, | can’t, you know, say that
right nowit wasn't in our plans but that was sonething that
came out of the CDQ community that was formed by North Pacific
Fi sheri es Managenent Council.

MR. CASHEN: Ckay. Thank you. M. Jones?

MR. JONES: Thank you. Larry Jones for the
record. WII you just expand on your request for an increase
in a Pacific cod allocation of 18 to 20 percent? You know,
ki nd of base that on active and proposed projects in a 2006 to
2008 CDP application?

MR. ASICKSIK: Again, I'll ask M. John Zuck to
cone up here and he will add onto ny comments but, as you well
know, NSEDC was the first CDQ group to acquire -- at one tine,
try to get a hundred percent of the Norton Sound that was
denied by the state so we worked with our harvesting partner,
d aci er Fish Conpany, and then we purchased 50 percent and |
think that was the first vessel that was purchased by any of
the six CDQ groups, the Norton Sound, and as the program
evol ved, we did acquire through sone ownership in now what’s
called the MR B but it was d acier Fish Conpany and Norton
Sound Ventures. The -- M. B, now GLACI ER BAY, was originally
going to be a crab vessel and it was converted into a | ong

liner and that fishes our pea cod and so to make these two
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boats productive, we would need additional pea cod and al so,
as history has proven, we’ve had pollock rationalization.
We‘ve had halibut and sable fish IFQs. Now we have crab
rationalization and history that these vessels that have
harvested coul d have an inpact, you know, on your investnents
and, as stated, we have two freezer long liners that we have
interest in and in order for -- to keep our enploynment nunbers
up, opportunities for people fromour region, we are
requesting an increase, you know, in the pea cod and we’ ve got
all -- maybe refer to John Zuck to maybe give a nore technical
answer .

MR ZUCK: John Zuck, CDQ harvest. The two
percent increase, | think, represents roughly an additional
trip on the Norton Sound, roughly about 300 tons or so so a
little bit less in a single trip; again, roughly 300,000
pounds of product in general, so |I’mnot sure what | can add
to what Eugene already said other than it’s an additional trip
on the Norton Sound.

MR. CASHEN: Ckay. You nentioned the Norton
Sound Seafood Center in your presentation and |I was wonderi ng
if you could provide an update on those operations. You ve
talked a little bit about enploynent benefits but you -- can

you talk a little bit about the -- your -- the business?
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W' ve -- when the comm ssioners and | were out in Golovin and
up to Nonme as well as Savoonga and Ganbell this sumrer, in

Gol ovin, you had a floating dock for your crab fishernen. Can
you just kind of talk about your business operation for the
Norton Sound king crab and how that provides enpl oynent
benefits as well as a market for your local fishernmen in

Nort on Sound?

MR. ASICKSI K:  Yeah, as stated earlier, you
know, we started devel oping the Norton Sound crab fishery back
in 1993 and since then, we participated in the small boat
har bor inprovenents in None. Also the Nome Harbor and we al so
built the Norton Sound Seafood Center in None to process crab
and halibut and prior to that, we had built a small hali but
operation out in Savoonga on St. Lawence |Island since the
hal i but was being harvested out there prior to our fishernen
getting nore involved into crab but with the Norton Sound
Seaf ood Center in Nome and the crab allocation and making
Norton Sound an super-exclusive LLP with a 32-foot exenption
fishery only for small boats, then, you know, that’s when we
nmoved forward with building the plant and then we al so
i npl enented our | arge vessel |oan program This |oan program
was i ntroduced by the fishernmen to the board of directors.

They set the paraneters and the anmounts and the total because
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t hey were concerned of over-capitalization of the Norton Sound

fishery. They recognize there are 61 LLP s that are assigned

to the Norton Sound crab fishery and at that tine, | believe
we had 16 registered -- or residents that owned LLP s. Today
it’s over 30, | believe. It’s pretty nmuch doubl ed because of

our | oan programand that was mainly to support the seafood
center in None.

As the biologists studied the crab and as fishernen
realized that there are sone crab, you know, in the
ol ovi n/ Cape Dar by/ Rocket Point area, they fished and Gol ovin
bei ng nore of a natural harbor and with the smaller vessels,
fishernmen, naturally to stay safe, were fishing out of the
Gol ovin area and they needed sone support and this past year,
you know, we deployed a floating dock and we also put in a ice
machi ne and unl oader into Golovin to support the fleet that
fishes out of Golovin. W also put in a titanium
refrigeration systeminto one of our crab vessels so we can
keep crab alive. They already had refrigeration systens in
them but they were for dead fish and in order to keep crab
alive and rejuvenate them we had to put in a nore expensive
systeminto our tender vessel and that gave -- you know, with
the floating dock, the tender vessel that gave the fishernen

that operate out of CGolovin a better opportunity that they
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will get paid and that we will receive that crab line in None
and the tender vessel runs the crab to None and we continue to
i nprove, you know, our operations in None. This past year,
believe we paid the crab and the halibut fishernen $1.2
mllion and we spent around 300 or 350,000 in wages at the
plant there in Nonme and that doesn’t, you know, speak for the
utilities that we’ve paid out and ny nunbers mght be a little
off but | do have stats here that could get nore accurate if
that’s what you want but 1’ve | ooked at the nunbers before and
|’m hoping that 1"mall right and I think board nenber, Dean
Peterson, from Golovin wants to make sonme conmments.

MR. CASHEN: Sure. M. Peterson?

MR. PETERSON: Just since we’ve had that dock
there in Golovin, the fuel sales for the City of Golovin have
gone up double during the summer and | don’t know if you guys
had a chance to observe our nmalls there but the grocery sal es
that canme out of there just fromthe crabbing fleet al one have
probably equal ed what the conmmunity of Golovin spends at them
stores. In addition, we are putting in five people to work
tenporarily twice a year to put in and pull out that dock and
just having that there is a big benefit to our community. It
al so benefits the comunity of Wiite Mouwuntain. You know, that

dock is in pretty heavy use all the tine. W got crabbing
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vessels that cone in fromall over our region. W’ve had
large lines that tried to use it but were kicked off by
menbers of the community because it wasn’t the intent of

unl oadi ng a bunch of freight and a dock that would -- you
know, they’d do a | ot nore damage to that thing than good so
-- that thing had a |l ot of use in there.

MR. HARRELSON: There’s another key thing that
shoul d brought out -- be brought out as far as the shore-side
i nprovenents that we’ve made in Golovin. 1t’s nade the
fishery a lot safer. Wen the weather gets bad, people got a
little safe port that they can go to instead of trying to nake
a long run back into None and the Gol ovin operation, |’m sure,
is going to help save lives. Cene spoke as far as the jobs
with the seafood plant in None and one thing that we nentioned

earlier that should be noted again is all the other businesses

are -- that benefit fromour operations both in Golovin and
None -- the airlines, the stores, people that sell fuel,
peopl e that repair boats -- the noney that’s paid to these

crab fishernen stays within our region and it’s a good shot in
the armfor our econony.

MR. CASHEN: Thank you. And | just had a
foll owup question on your halibut requests. You -- you’ve

requested an increase in your area 4-D halibut as well as a --
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an allocation for 4-E and |’ m wonderi ng, nunber one, do you
have the fishernmen -- the local fishernen that could harvest
the additional allocations and, nunber two, would they deliver
to the Nonme Seafood Center, Norton Sound Seafood Center?

MR. ASICKSI K:  Yes, as we spoke about our | arge
vessel |oan program halibut is the next fishery after crab.
This year, as | stated earlier, the CDQ crab was harvested in
possi bly three days. The open access crab was harvested in
one nonth and if you have a $80, 000 vessel or you receive a
$80, 000 | oan from NSEDC, then with your insurance and your
operations, you need alternative fisheries so nost of our crab
fishermen are switching over to halibut and we see this trend
growi ng and, as we stated in our testinony, St. Law ence
| sl and where we devel op our halibut fishery has not fished
hal i but for the |ast four seasons nainly because they are al
wor ki ng at Northeast Cape on the mlitary cleanup and | don’t
bl ane those fishernen for taking a -- you know, a 35 to $40 an
hour job cleaning up Northeast Cape mlitary waste and | think
that project is over as of last year and they’' ve al so seen a
increase in local construction, mainly water and sewer and
housi ng so we anticipate those fishernmen to cone back to
fishing because we’ ve al so given them | oans and al so upgraded,

you know, beach |anding areas for themin the past and that
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fishery is very interesting if you can inmagi ne going out with
an 18-foot Lund out into the Bering Sea off of a rocky island
and then having to cone back and you have your wi fe and your
children Iining up pallets on the beach so you can nake a run
on the beach and avoid the rocks or otherw se you swanp so
that’s the only way they could unload their halibut unless
it’s glass comwhich is maybe three tines out of the summer
and that’s an interesting challenge and so we assisted in
three landing areas for themin the past and renovi ng boul ders
that, you know, the tractor could barely push but yet the
seawat er woul d put themright back to where we renpbved them
and it’s been an ongoing -- but we anticipate themto start
fishing for halibut and if that occurs, in the past, we worked
with Northern Air Cargo to where we had 9,000 to 12,000 pounds
of halibut and we needed a lot of ice out there and you coul d
hol d halibut, you know, a maxi num of naybe nine days on ice
but now wth the plant, we’'ll just be shuttling from Savoonga
to None and the 4-E, not make any stabs but Julie Anderson who
was your predecessor probably before Bryce and the guy --
sal non guy now, | can’t think of his nanme but we’'d.....

MR CASHEN: Hai ght .

MR. ASI CKSI K:  Huh?

MR, CASHEN: d enn.
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MR. ASICKSIK: denn Haight. You know, | did
-- NSEDC has been petitioning the state for a 4-E allocation
for many years and when | PHC canme up and found that they had
80, 000 pounds of additional halibut and they wanted to put it
in 4-Ein the Hlton Hotel in Seattle in the stairwell, we
shook hands and | agreed, you know, that the -- all 80, 000
pounds would go into 4-E and that we would receive a 4-E
al l ocation because we weren’'t trying to develop a hali but
fishery out in None. W shook hands but as the allocations
canme around, we did not receive any 4-E allocation. Neither
did Yukon Delta. Seventy percent went to Coastal Village, 30
percent went to Bristol Bay so we were pretty hard-headed
about it and we opposed when they wanted to make 4-D pri mabl e
(ph). We opposed it till we received an increase in our
al l ocation and once that |ine becane -- | nmean, once we
received an increase in our allocation, we consented to the 4-
Dline to be primable to where fishernmen can fish 4-D quota in
4-E and today we still oppose to nmake the line two-way because
peopl e that have 4-E halibut wants to go in with their |arge
vessel into 4-E waters. |If they can’'t harvest it, then, you
know, maybe we should receive it. W acquired additional
40, 000 pounds of halibut this past summer or fall in case our

fishermen.....
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CASHEN. IFQ s or.....

AS| CKSI K:  No, CDQ

2 3 3

CASHEN:  Ckay.

MR. ASICKSIK: W acquired Bristol Bay --
excuse me, Coastal Village transferred.....

MR. CASHEN: Onh, transferred.

MR. ASICKSIK: ..... to us in case our fishernen
harvested a hundred percent of our halibut, you know, and so
| know |"mgetting a little.....

MR. CASHEN:. Yeah.

MR ASICKSIK: ..... hostil e here but we’ve been

trying to request 4-E halibut, we haven’t received any

MR, CASHEN. Well, the.....

MR ASICKSIK:  ..... | anticipate our fishing
fleet as they becone nore efficient and they purchase nore
gear and just for a note, as | stated earlier, this |arge
vessel | oan program was devel oped by our fishernmen and it
sunsets this nonth, Decenber, 2004, and any future | oans, you
know, w |l have to be addressed in a different manner. In
ot her words, we don’t have a | arge vessel |oan program W
have, | believe, 18 |arge vessels up there ranging from32 to

48, | believe, that, you know, have potential or can swtch
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over in -- fishing crab and hali but.

MR, CASHEN. So just to summarize, you -- your
fi shermen have the capability to catch nore halibut if you
were allocated nore halibut in 4-E and 4-D?

MR, ASICKSIK: Yes, and | think as they go
further and further and |l earn, you know, the grounds and --
they won’t participate -- granted, this year, we transferred,
you know, to our long liner, 50,000 pounds to supplenment our
other fisheries and generate sone revenue and an additional 20
SO -- but the fishermen harvested the remai ning quota and when
we realized that we m ght be running short, we approached the
ot her CDQ groups and Coastal Village and Bristol Bay both said
that they have halibut available that they could transfer to
us if needed be and then we could work a transfer anmendnent
with Coastal Village but, unfortunately, a big stormhit
Norton Sound and that kind of ended our halibut fishery and I
have the gentl eman from Unal akleet. | think he | ost 12 skates

of gear in that stormthat he's going to have to repl ace

MR CASHEN. So | just -- 1 -- I'"m-- just want
to clarify, so the additional allocations would be harvested
by local fishernmen, not by a long liner -- a large long liner?

That’ s kind of what 1’mgetting at because the hali but
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allocations are -- at least in -- they were designed for |ocal
residents so | just -- you had said that you transferred sonme
to your long liner. |Is that -- was that because of the
inability to catch it or.....

MR. ASICKSIK: No, it wasn't because of
inability, it was because of maybe foresight. |f you | ook at
t he evol venent of halibut in Norton Sound, yes, in the past,
we did not harvest it all but what I'’msaying is that as our
fishermen get nore efficient, we are harvesting nore and nore
every year. The year before, we transferred and worked with
Yukon Delta to do a cleanup fishery since they have the little

boat there that, you know, can run around at free will so they

harvested our remaining CDQ halibut because it’s -- you know,
you just can’t -- you need a longer tinme frame to do a cl eanup
fishery but at -- again, as global warm ng occur and, as |
stated to Phillip, that | do have ny arnms outstretched and |

expect his halibut to continue to swng north into col der
water. W anticipate nore halibut in the area and we
anticipate our fishernen to get nore efficient and harvest
nore hali but.

MR. CASHEN: Ckay. M. Stiles?

MR, STILES: Yeah, I'd like to speak about the

hal i but fishery. It has been an expensive endeavor for a | ot
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of our fishernmen. Some of them have been successful, some of
t hem not so successful, mainly due to the high cost of fuel in
the region and | think on a trip, it would probably cost about
900 to over a thousand dollars just in fuel costs al one but |
think sone of the learning curve for the new halibut fishernen
has been the bait situation and finding out what bait and what
quality of bait works better for our fishernen so once those
things are learned, | think the fishernmen will becone nore
efficient and able to harvest nore of the quota avail abl e.

MR. CASHEN: Ckay. Thank you. M. Harrelson?

MR. HARRELSON: One quick thing 1'd like to add
is -- both on the crab and halibut is these fisheries have
devel oped. It’s recognized by other people in -- within the
region that you can be successful fishing, you can nake noney,
you can feed your famly and so the nunber of our fishernen
are growing. W’ve got kids in high school that are talking
al ready they want to get their own crab boats. As | stated
earlier, we’ ve got deck hands that have worked for two or
three years, now are getting their own boats and out there
fishing so you' re going to see the nunber of fishernmen grow
and when those nunbers grow, we need nore fish to be able to
sustain those guys out there fishing.

MR STILES: | -- 1’1l use ny son as exanple.
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He’s 16 years old. He went out crabbing with me this sumer
and we just transferred to another school, he did, and we
interviewed with the principal there and they had asked him
what he wanted to do after he graduated and, to ny disnmay, he
said he wanted to be a crabber but he’s got an interest in it
and 1'Il certainly support himif that is what he chooses to
do but | would also |like himto further his education.

MR. CASHEN: Well, thank you both. M. .....

MR. ASICKSIK: One nore -- as a final note,
guess | was just handed a note by our operations nanager,
Savoonga fleet in 1998 caught 71,000 pounds of halibut and
None fleet caught zero. This year, | believe the Nonme fl eet
caught 104, 000 pounds so if you add in -- you know, as we
stated, Savoonga will get back into the fishery, we wll
exceed the allocation that we currently have.

MR. CASHEN:. Thank you. | appreciate your
testinmony. That’s -- the None Seafood Center is very
inportant to your region and your fishernen so appreciate
t hat .

MR. DAVIS: | had one question. M. Davis.....

MR. CASHEN: Oh.

MR DAVIS: ..... for the record. | noted that

M. Krygi er had asked you a question based on your Power Poi nt
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presentation but you did not supply us with a hard copy of it.
Wuld you Iike to put a hard copy in the record?

MR ASICKSIK: | already supplied it to your
recorder, all the -- his statenents, ny statenents and a
picture of every slide that was.....

MR DAVIS: So we’'ve got it?

MR. ASI CKSI K: Yes, you have.

MR. DAVIS: Thank you. | just want to nmake
sure we have it.

MR. CASHEN. Ms. Leaner, do you want to take
t he next question?

MS. LEAMER. This is Lola Leaner of the CDQ
program In the interest of tine, we'd |ike to keep your
answers short. | believe we’'re 15 m nutes over right now
Just briefly describe the Norton Sound’s in-region prograns
that provide benefit to the residents; specifically, your
internship training, education and enpl oynent prograns. |
realize you ve probably already covered this but if you d just
focus on it real quickly? Thanks.

MR. ASICKSIK: If Jerry Ivanoff was here, |
woul d have deferred to himbut, as | said, he wasn’'t here due
to weather but our in-region.....

MR. CASHEN: You can just summari ze.
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MR, ASICKSIK: ..... we have a nunber of people
working with the Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane in
internship prograns we provide to interns for the herring
operation when there is a herring operation and they, in turn,
will switch over into the sal non operation and there are a
nunmber of counting towers that are operated by Departnment of
Fish and Gane and al so Kaweruk, their regional non-profit, the
Bering Sea Fishermen’s Association. W also provide interns
there. W provide interns in other businesses and the board
has taken the position that we would provide interns for non-
profit organizations within the region. W’ ve provided
interns for the Norton Sound Health -- Hospital and they hired
both interns as pernmanent enpl oyees today. W’ ve had a nunber
of interns that have becone pernmanent enpl oyees for other
organi zations and the -- this CDP, they -- we noted that we
were taking care of the adults and the -- we normally try to
target our college scholarship recipients for internships so
t hey coul d have additional funds they’'Il hold for the --
continuing their education. W started the marine degree
waste heat and it is submtted in our CDQ where we'll be
targeting nore of the high school students and the younger
adults in our communities to where they could have an

opportunity to have summer enpl oynent and this woul d be
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fishery-related marine degree and al so assisting with other
prograns, our enhancenent progranms and | think we wll
continue to step that up. W’ ve started a nunber of prograns
in our region for enhancenent. W work with the None School
District on a wist incubation project and I know you want ed
to keep the answers short so I’'Il just quit.

MR. CASHEN. M. Stiles?

MR, STILES: Yeah, 1'd like to speak about the
i nternship opportunities. Over $900, 000 has been earned
t hrough that program The enploynent of residents in the
fishing industry has been over $9 million in wages. Post-
secondary and vocational schol arships, over 1-1/2 mllion and
fishery-related training opportunities, over 1.2 mllion so
there’s a ot of opportunities there for people in the region.
There -- sonme of the training opportunities have not been
w t hout their problens and growi ng pains and we’ve recently
started discussing changi ng sone of those to target qual --
nmore quality and Eugene -- or Dan brought that up earlier
about sone of the refrigeration, electrical and stuff |ike
that that is needed to operate the plants and ot her things
within the region.

MR. CASHEN: Thank you. M. Jones?

MR. JONES: Thank you. Wuld you provide a --
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just lay a brief update on NSEDC s plans -- fish plans of the
flatfish pool for the 2006 to 2008 CDP cycl e?

MR, ASICKSIK: That is a very tough fishery and
| just consider the H&G or bottomtrawing is not a very good
di scussion at the council. Everyone -- personally, sonetines
| think the State of Al aska and the environnentalists | ook at
that so that is one area that we haven't really got into very
or haven't hit it very hard but we’ve tried with the
all ocations that we’ve received and I’'ll call John Zuck up
again to maybe give nore technical specific answers but we
have no ownership and that’'s sonething that -- you know, that
is being targeted a lot at the council |evel and we haven’t
really got involved in, you know, the bottomfish so John
m ght add to that, so.....

MR ZUCK: Ckay. John Zuck, CDQ harvest
managenent. Laird, can | ask it -- the flatfish pool, are you
referring to any.....

MR. JONES: Flatfish fisheries. |1'msorru, |
didn’'t nmean to say pool.

MR ZUCK: Ckay. Because | know that is a
group of -- you know, the groups that are working together.
Yeah, the flatfish fisheries, like the other H&G vessel type

fisheries, have been hit or mss over the years and a | arge
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part of that is, you know, the size of the open access
fisheries and the tack and the fact that those vessels
basically nove fromone fishery to another as there are
opportunities and so haven't -- other than Atka mackerel,
haven’t had a |l ot of opportunities to harvest a | ot of the
flatfish fisheries. This last year, as it turned out, the
conpani es the vessels hit the yellowfin sole fishery pretty
hard early in the year and had very | ow by-catch and so they
were able to take their full amount of quota in each of the
seasons and there was tine franmes then available to fish CDQ
yellowfin. You know, again, these fisheries are kind of hit
or mss, depending on availability of tinme in between for his
open access fisheries and -- what would really help, if -- is
if CDQ fisheries would be able to start the year say January 1
i nstead of January 20th and have sonme limted fisheries
earlier in the year. That would be an opportunity perhaps to
fish some rock sole roe fisheries.

The other problemw th the flatfish fisheries that
fall outside the normal regular seasons for harvesting is that
we run into, really, a difficult -- we can run into difficult
bycatch situations. Wth the | ower anmounts of certain species
by-catch, you know, we can run into by-catch problens and so

it happened one year -- | think it was year before | ast, we
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tried to fish flathead sole later in the year well up north
and we ended up running into OQpilio by-catch so what happens
then next Opilio season, we knew right where to get themso --
in our crab fishery. So -- but anyway, that -- hope |
answered your question.

MR, CASHEN. Ckay. Thank you. Any other
questions fromthe teanf? Conm ssioner?

MR, BLATCHFORD: | had a question but it’s not
related to the CDQ program Soneone spoke about Gol ovin and |
was wondering about the horses. How are the horses?

MR. ASICKSIK: | think the horses are stil
there and Natcha (ph) -- what’d he have, seven?

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE SPEAKER: Ri ght.

MR. ASICKSIK: No, nine. N ne horses. | know
you didn't believe us when he told you as you were | andi ng

into Golovin that you were going to see horses on the flats

but they.....
MR. BLATCHFORD: | did see horses.
MR. ASICKSIK: There’s nine of themup there.
MR CASHEN: Ckay.
MR. HARRELSON: There’s a cute story that goes
with those horses. There's -- when the Iditarod was goi ng
t hrough one year, they -- one of the mushers was goi ng through
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and he thought he was hallucinating. There was a snow nmachi ne
that drove by pulling a sled that had a horse sitting in it
with all four legs pointing up in the air. The poor horse had
gotten hypertherm a and they were taking it in to warmit up
but the Iditarod racer was sure that he' d been on the trai
much too | ong so horses are doi ng good.

MR. CASHEN. Ckay. |If there are no further
questions, |I'd like to take another five-mnute break and go
of f the record.

(O f record)
(On record)

THE CLERK: We're on the record now.

MR. CASHEN: Ckay. W’'re back on the record.
This last portion of the public hearing, 1'd Iike to nove that
we go into executive session and | have Chris Poag with the
Al aska Departnment of Law to explain sone of the paraneters for
executive session, what can be discussed in executive session.

MR. BLATCHFORD: (Okay. Let’s get the notion on
the floor.

MR CASHEN:  Ckay.

MR. BLATCHFORD: It’'s been noved. [It’'s --
Laird, do you second?

MR JONES: Yes.
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MR. BLATCHFORD: Mbved and second for the CDQ
teamto go into executive session for the reasons that wll be
expl ained by the attorney.....

MR. POAG  Yeah.

MR, BLATCHFCORD: ..... fromthe Departnent of
Law. Mark, do you want to preface any of these remarks?

MR DAVIS: No.

MR. POAG Good norning. Chris Poag fromthe
Department of Law. Mre for the benefit of the public, the
CDQ team has asked ne to explain the grounds that support our
notion to go into executive session. Today the state, the CDQ
teamwould like to rely on two statutory grounds to go in
executive session, to take up two subject matters. The
statute we're relying on is, obviously, Alaska Statute
44.62. 310 and in subsection C, there are two provisions,
par agr aphs three and four, that we intend to i nvoke as our
grounds for going into executive session. Three and four are
very simlar in nature. Both of them say that confidenti al
materials protected by state | aw and confidential governnment
records can be discussed in executive session. W believe
t hat your business plans for the future and your CDQ royalty
rates are highly proprietary and, as a result, are protected

by state law. | can’'t point to a statute. | can point to the
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Constitution, Article 1, Section 22, and what that creates is
a privacy for you folks in your business records which we

thi nk those two subject matters are protected by and we’'re
supposed to weigh that, your interest in privacy, against the
public’s right to know. In doing that balancing test, the CDQ
team bel i eves your privacy outweighs the public’s right to
know your busi ness plans and your CDQ royalty rates so for

t hose reasons, we -- the teamintends to vote on the notion to
go into executive session. If it’s approved, we would ask M.
Asi cksik to please identify who here you would like to remain
in the room because you' re voluntarily exposing themto your
private information. W want to make sure that those -- the
peopl e that are here are the fol ks that you want to be here so
|1’d like you to not just nanme them but to maybe turn around at
the end and make sure that people you' ve nanmed are the people
that are here and sonebody hasn’t slipped by your attention
because we certainly don’'t want to expose a.....

MR ASICKSIK: You want ne to nane them is

MR POAG | do but -- and the |last request we
have is I"'ma | awer that provides advice to the CDQ t eam but
you' re exposing nme to your private information too so | guess

we want your blessing that | stay in the room You don’'t have
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to grant that blessing and I’'ll gladly take an early |unch but
| have been present for the other proceedi ngs and, again, we'd
i ke your blessing on that. You probably have been infornmed
and the public should know we are recordi ng the executive
sessions and we believe that they' re confidential but this is
an adm ni strative advisor body and we are creating a record of
this.

MR. ASICKSIK: Yes, | could go into nam ng
everyone but | would just ask that anyone that is not
affiliated with the CDQ team or with NSEDC to be excused for
t he executive session.

MR POAG WIIl you do ne a favor then and, for
the record, indicate that you ve |ooked at the crowd and you
t hi nk everyone present today is sonebody that you wish to be
here?

MR, BLATCHFORD: Yeah, M ke Black is part of
the CDQ team Do you want his m ke?

MR. ASI CKSI K: Yes, everyone that’s in the
audience is all right and | didn't realize that M. Black was
part of the CDQ team |Is there other nenbers that are part of
the CDQ teamthat are not present here and have parti ci pated
in other CDQ hearings that I don’t know of ?

MR POAG  Msel f.
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MR ASICKSIK: But | presune you -- you're.....

MR BLATCHFORD: Well, Al -- Deputy
Comm ssi oner, Al d ough.

MR POAG Ch, I'msorry.

MR. ASICKSIK: Al doughis.....

MR. BLATCHFORD: Yeah, Division Director,
Banking -- or Investnents, G eg Wnegar, but they will have a
transcript of everything that is discussed here.

MR. ASICKSIK: So you’'re saying they
participated in previous CDQ ....

MR. CASHEN: Yes.

MR BLATCHFORD: R ght.

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE SPEAKER  They had to go hone
yes -- last night.

MR, ASI CKSIK: Ckay. So.....

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE SPEAKER Had to go back to
Juneau. They had other neetings they had to attend.

MR. ASICKSIK: Al right. So |I have no
problenms with the rest staying and | assune the recorders are
staff of state so.....

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE SPEAKER  Ckay. And do you
have a problem....

MR, ASICKSIK: No, | don’t have any probl em
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MR. DAVIS: Yeah, and for the record, this is
M. Davis. | -- M. Chairman, we’ve -- we kind of do need a
record of who's here. That could be done by -- if you could
just take the nanmes down of who's in the back and give it to
the court reporter, that’s what we asked one group to verify.

MR POAG | wanted to | eave one | ast
cautionary note and executive session only allows us to take
up those two topics and if we have to go outside the scope of
any of those two topics, we need to go back on the public
record. It’s very inportant to the process working so pl ease
limt your presentation or responses to questions to sinply
those two areas and | nean business plans that the public
doesn’t know about. | nean, business plans for the future
that which if were disclosed would be -- have a negative
i npact on your corporation and royalty rates that aren’'t --
haven't al ready been exposed to the public because we know
there’s hard-fought battles over those royalty rates and you
have an interest in keeping that private but we cannot exceed
the scope of that or we have a problem Ckay?

MR. ASI CKSI K: Okay. For the record, M.
Davis, everyone that is in the audience has signed in. There

are two signed-in people, Tom Maguire and Marci ano -- or Rocky

METRO COURT REPORTING
745 West Fourth Avenue, Suite 425
Anchorage, Alaska 99501
(907) 276-3876

- O5-



as we refer -- are not present right now but |I know Tom sai d
that he needed to check out to catch a flight or check out of
his hotel so he mght walk in or he mght m ss the whole
executive session so you have recording.

MR. DAVIS: Thank you very nmuch for clarifying
that. Okay. The question is on the floor. 1Is the CDQ team
ready to vote?

MR. CASHEN: Yes.

MR DAVIS: CDQteamis ready to vote. All in
favor of going in executive session for the reasons stated by
the Departnent of Law attorney, say aye.

MEMBERS:  Aye.

MR. DAVIS: All opposed, say nay. Hearing no
nays, we will go into executive session. Please shut the
doors. That was quick. Geg?

(CDQ TEAM GCES | NTO EXECUTI VE SESSI ON FOR 15 M NUTES)

MR. POAG Yeah, Chris Poag, Departnent of Law.
Just let the record show that we didn't take any action in
executive session. In fact, we didn’t take up any matters
pursuant to the notion to go in executive session so there,
essentially, was not an executive session.

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE SPEAKER:  Thank you very

much. M. Cashen?

METRO COURT REPORTING
745 West Fourth Avenue, Suite 425
Anchorage, Alaska 99501
(907) 276-3876

-96-



MR. CASHEN:. Eugene or Dan, do you have any
further testinmony you ' d like the teamto hear or anything to
add?

MR ASICKSIK: Well, with the delay, | was
wonderi ng, you know, when we woul d hear of the decision from
the CDQ team |Is it six nonths?

MR. CASHEN: W expect to have sonething
toget her probably in January. | can’t give an exact date at
this tine.

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE SPEAKER. First part. First
hal f .

MR. CASHEN. | -- as soon as we can but | would
just say January because | don’t want to give an exact date at
this tine.

MR. ASI CKSI K:  And ny understandi ng of the
appeal s process and what was explained by the state earlier is
that once a decision is made, consultation wll take place or
the CDQ group will have six nonths to appeal before it is
submtted to the North Pacific Fisheries Managenent Counci
because we’ ve stated that, you know, the |ast go-around, we
did not knowtill the state CDQ team nade its presentation to
the North Pacific Fisheries Managenment Council.

MR. CASHEN. No, when we’ve inforned the group

METRO COURT REPORTING
745 West Fourth Avenue, Suite 425
Anchorage, Alaska 99501
(907) 276-3876

-97-



seven, we’'ve been very clear that there’' |l be -- after the
initial allocation recomendations, the groups will be all owed
a 30-day request for reconsideration. Then the state wl|l

have 30 days to reply to the request for reconsideration.

Then we will incorporate that into our testinony to the North
Paci fic Fishery Managenment Council at the April, ‘05 counci
meeting and then we’' Il have our allocation recomendations

sent to the National Mrine Fisheries Service by April 15th of
‘05 and after NMFS goes through -- | mean, they have their

process on the NVFS side but that’'s, essentially, the state's

process.
MR. ASI CKSI K:  Ckay.
MR. CASHEN. So there is no formal appeals
process at the state level. So -- M. Harrel son?

MR. HARRELSON: | guess | want to ask a quick
gquestion as far as your allocation determ nations. That
process itself on how you determ ne what our CDQ group gets --
gets an allocation, is that process or is that determ nation
public information?

MR. CASHEN: No, it’s not. As | understand the
Open Meetings Act, it’s not public.

MR. ASICKSIK: Unless there is a chall enge,

then there is -- then the way | understood the letter is that
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it becones -- or we get to see why our determ nation is nade.

MR. CASHEN. |'mnot sure | understood -- | --
| " mnot sure | understood that, Eugene.

MR DAVIS: Well, why don’'t we refer that
guestion to M. Poag.

MR POAG This is a -- we’'re here today for
t he purposes of public testinony about your proposed CDP
we’'re not here to talk about the regulatory process that is or
isn't provided in state law. |If you want to have those
di scussi ons, probably your |awer should contact nme and we can
tal k about that but it’s set out in the regulations so |I'm
sure he can provide you advice on how that process works.
Now, | amgiving advice to this teamas to what is and isn't
subject to the Opens Meeting Act and what are and are not
all owed to be discussed in executive session. There's no
requi renent that executive sessions be tape recorded and, as
your |awyer will probably advise you, deliberations -- free
thinking in deliberation process has al ways been protected,
just as a jury deliberates in a free thinking process and
who's to say that this group will even get together and have a
deliberation? They -- there’'s a large witten reconmendati on
that will come fromthe CDQ teamand that is where you see the

anal ysis that goes into the determ nation that was made. This
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is a recommendation and that's all it is. NWS nakes the
final determ nation

MR. ASI CKSI K:  Ckay. Thank you.

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE SPEAKER  Thank you

MR. CASHEN: Ckay. Does the team have any
further corments? Comm ssioner, do you have any further
comment s?

MR. BLATCHFCORD: No, M. Chairman and Gene, it
was a very good presentation. | enjoyed it very nuch and |
t hought that hit all the major points that we have under
consideration and did a very fine job.

MR. ASI CKSI K:  Thank you. Thank you all.

MR. CASHEN. Ckay. Thank you, Eugene. WM’ am
like to go off the record.

THE REPORTER O f record.

(O f record)
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